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Total Income 4.64 18.2 46.7 68.10) 80.8

Paid-up Share Capital 950. 1,150.02] 2,015.02{ 2,085.02 2,085‘02I
Reserve & Surplus 1.24 12.50 35.08| 66.56) 106.76)
Capital Employed 1,669.26| 3,11552] 4,495.10 6,061.58| 7,417.84
Net worth 1,149.24] 1,676.00] 2,119.09] 2,151.07 2,191.78
Net Fixed Assets 2.78 2.97 3.29 3.37 2.72
Profit before tax 1.89 15.25 39.34 57.28 67.49
Provision for Tax 3.9 10.91 16.45 15.58
Profit after tax 1.89 11.27] 28.43 40.83 51.91
Dividend . . 5.00 8.00) 10.00
Earning Per Share (EPS) 0.02 0.12 0.21 0.20 0.25
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Chairman’s Address

Distinguished Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Rail
Vikas Nigam Limited | extend a very warm welcome to
all of you on the occasion of the Seventh Annual General
Meeting of the Company. The audited accounts of the
Company for the financial year 2009-10, along with the
Directors’ Report and reports of Auditors and comments
of Comptroller and Auditor General of India have already
been circulated to you and with your permission, | take
them as read.

I am happy to report that during 2009-10, RVNL
continued on the path of its upward trajectory and the
Company achieved a turnover from project execution of
Rs.1749 crore in 2009-10, registering a growth of 5.7% over
the previous year. The gross profit of the Company
Increased from Rs. 68,10 crore in 2008-09 to Rs, 80.82 crore
in the current year. The income from project execution in
2009-10 increased to Rs 58.69 crore as against Rs 34.66
crore in 2008-09. Despite the heavy burden arising out of
the implementation of the 8" Pay Commission for
employees under CDA, and second Pay Committee
recommendations for employees under IDA, it is indeed
commendable that RVNL was able to restrict its DE&G
charges in 2009-10 within the limit of 5%, i.e. at 4 58% of
project expenditure. In this context, it is also important
to highlight that RVNL incurs substantial expenditure on
items of expenditure such as rent on offices and
residence, medical, travel and lodging which are not
incurred by Construction organizations on the Rallways
and directly charged to the project. RVNL is reviewing
the methodology of charging of D&G charges to projects
1o bring them in ine with those charges being incurred
on projects on the Rallways. To reduce the incurrence of
expenditure on D&G charges, as RVNL is engaged in
executing only Railway projects, the Company has
requested Rallway Board for allocation of surplus office
accommodation for project offices at nominal charges as
is being allowed to other Railway PSUs such as IRCTC.
The proposal is presently under consideration of the
Railway Board,

The major source of profits of Rs.32.95 crore Is from
the execution of projects for SPVs while Rs. 25.74
crore was realised as Management Fee for execution

of Railway projects. One of the contributing factors
to the improved financial performance of the
Company has been the decision of the Railway Board
to increase the management fee of RVNL from 1 to
2 per cent, An additional incentive of upto 0.5 per
cent has been allowed based on the performance of
the Company as assessed by the rating achieved in
the MOU entered into with the Ministry of Rallways
and DPE, While the Company is grateful to the MoR
for the confidence placed In it by Increasing the
Management Fee at the same time there is a further
need to ensure that the margins allowed to RVNL are
at par with similar placed organizations and that there
is sufficient potential for the Company to nurture and
grow into a viable and sustainable organization.

In view of the improved financial performance,
the Directors have recommended a dividend of Rs 10
crore for 2009-10 as compared to Rs 8 crore during the
previous year, i.e an increase of 25%, for the
consideration by share holders.

It is also to be highlighted that this level of
achievement was realized with an on roll staff strength
of only 245 regular personnel and was made possible
largely due to basic changes in project planning,
tendering, awarding of contracts and project execution.
RVNL has done pioneering work In preparation of a
new bill of quantities, which significantly reduces the
effort in decision making and contract management,
thereby reducing the requirement of manpower. RVNL
has continued to maintain an extremely thin
organization which exemplifies the dedication and
efficiency of its officers and staff,

This dedication and efficiency is reflected in
the physical completion of projects handed over to
the respective Zonal Railways for operations. During
the year, RVNL commissioned and handed over to the
Railways 80 kms of doubling cum gauge conversion
between Phulera-Ajmer of the operationally
important Rewari-Phulera-Ajmer Gauge conversion
project. The 101 km long section between
Sirkazhi-Villupuram of Mayiladuturai-Villupuram
gauge conversion project on Southern Railway was
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commissioned, thereby completing the project. On
North Western Railway the 223 kms long gauge
conversion project of Bhildi-Samdari, which provides
a vital link between the North and the ports of
Western India, was commissioned for goods traffic in
December 2009. In March 2010, a loco trial run was
successfully conducted after completion of
construction of the port connectivity work of
Vallarpadm-ldapally new line, funded by Ministry of
Shipping. This project involved construction of a 4.6
kms long bridge, which is the longest railway bridge
in India. This bridge has been constructed in a record
time of 27 months, The Tirivallur-Arakkonam 3@ line
project which was completed in 2008.-09 was
commissioned for passenger traffic in 2009-10. On
South Central Railway the Pullampet-Bhakrapet, 43
kms section, of the Gooty-Pullampet patch doubling
project was commissioned for passenger traffic in
February 2010. The Hospet-Guntakal project was
completed with the commissioning of Bellari by-pass
in March 2010, Among the Rallway Electrification
Projects, 43 km of the Nandallur-Cuddapah section of
the Renigunta-Guntakal Project and 49 km of Tomka-
Harichandpur section of Tomka-Banspani Project were
also completed and energized in 2009-10.

RVNL has till now completed 422 kms of
doubling, 1517 kms of gauge conversion, 185 kms of
new line and 1152 kms of Railway Electrification, In
all, 22 projects have been fully completed up till 31*
March 2010. These achievements prove the capability
of the company in executing difficult works and
meeting the expectation of delivering high quality
infrastructure,

In addition to funding of projects through the
Budget of the Ministry of Railways, RVNL has been able
to mobilize funds from other sources Including
borrowing and private participation for the execution
of projects in SPV mode. RVNL has till now formed five
Special Purpose Vehicle (SPVs). The total value of
projects identified for implementation in SPV mode Is
Rs.3837 crore, out of which the total equity of RVNL
will be Rs.528 crore, of private stakeholders Rs. 722 crore
and Rs.2059 crore will be raised through debt leveraged
on the equity of the various companies.

ﬁmwmmmm

The various SPV projects are at various stages
of implementation. The first SPV of RVNL, Kutch
Railway Company Limited, which constructed the
Gandhidham-Palanpur line has seen a geometrical
growth over the last three years and is expected to
reach its saturation level in the next five years, A
proposal for doubling of the line is already in process.
Krishnapatnam Raflway Company Limited has already
commissioned the first portion of the Obulavaripalle-
Krishnapatnam new line project between
Venkatachalam to Krishnapatnam Port and rail traffic
from the Port is now moving along the line to join the
Indian Railway system. The project involves
construction of two tunnels of a total length of 8.3 kms.
with one tunnel being 7 kms long. The work for design
consultancy for the tunnel has been awarded and it is
planned to award the tender for construction of the
tunnel by March 2011.  The contract for execution of
work for 2 block sections between Obulavaripalle-
Nethivaripalli has also been awarded. The work of
gauge conversion of the line between Bharuch and
Dahej awarded in April, 2009 has picked up pace and is
expected to be completed by March 2011, This is in
spite of the fact that work on the project inside Baruch
city was stopped for a considerable duration by thelocal
population demanding a change of alignment. Angul-
Sukinda Railway Limited, the SPV for execution of
Angul-Sukinda new line project has become functional
with the signing of Shareholders Agreement and
Concession Agreement. The land acquisition is in
process and the tender for construction of a major
bridge on the river Brahmani has been floated. The
Harldaspur-Paradeep project has unfortunately
received a set back due to local unrest resulting in
problems of land acquisition and action is being taken
to resolve the issue,

In this context it would not be out of place to
highlight that one of the main objectives for which
RVNL was established was to raise non-budgetary
resources for implementation of bankable railway
projects. However, this mandated role of RVNL has
been restricted to that of only implementation of
projects. The Vision 2020 Document of the Indian
Rallways project that approximately Rs.14,00,000 crore
will be needed for augmentation of capacity,
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upgradation and modernization of Railways in the next
10 years. A major part of this amount will have to be
raised through extra budgetary resources. Perhaps,
with the constraint of availability of funds for project
implementation being faced by the Railways, this may
be the right time for Railway Board to review the role
of RVNL so that it can play a role in raising funds from
the market for execution of bankable projects. The
large capital base of RVNL can be leveraged for fund
raising as per the original scheme. RVNL will also need
a sound revenue stream to have a healthy bottom line
to increase the strength of its balance sheet for
borrowing and debt servicing.

RVNL is doing its utmost to ensure completion
of physical targets and is concentrating on projects
which have been delayed for one reason or the other.
This requires meticulous planning and close
coordination with the Zonal Railways to ensure
avallability of blocks, manpower, movement of
material to integrate the project railway with the
existing running railway system. This is especially so
for doubling and 3" line projects. It is with the active
cooperation of the Zonal Rallways that a number of
sections, as already detalled, were opened during the
year. | am sure that the Zonal Railways will be giving
their best to ensure full cooperation to RVNL in the
current year and future to ensure successful
implementation of projects.

I am happy to report that recognizing the good
performance of the company, Railway Board has
continued to repose faith in RVNL and transferred
another seven projects during 2010-11 involving a
capital expenditure of about Rs 9300 crore. These
include construction of 66 kms of new Metro rail lines,
implementation of New Line Projects and construction
of a Diesel Loco Component factory which is an entirely
new domain of project execution for RVNL, These
projects involve either intensive supervision or a
longer gestation period, for which a higher DEG level
should be permitted by Railway Board. RVNL has
already taken action for project preparedness of the
five projects to be funded from the second ADB loan

s0 that tenders can be floated as soon as the “in
principle® approval of ADB is received. However, due
to delay in the sanction of the ADB loan, the execution
of the five projects is held up which is affecting the
performance of the Company.

As per Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)
guidelines, RVNL like all other PSUs has to sign a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Ministry
of Rallways every year, which contains specific financial
and physical targets to be achieved during the year. |
am happy to report that for the year 2009-10, RVNL, as
per internal assessment, has evaluated its performance
vis-a-vis MOU targets as Very Good. The Company has
sent the rating to Department of Public Enterprises for
approval. | am confident that RVNL will further improve
its performance with respect to the targets set in the
MOU for 2010-11 and achieve a rating of "Excellent™. |
am also happy to inform that as per the guidelines
issued by Department of Public Enterprises on
Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises in June 2007, RVNL had incorporated the
Report on Corporate Governance and Management
Discussion & Analysis Report in the Annual Report for
the financial year 2007-08 and is also a part of the
Annual Report for 2009-10.

It is @ matter of great satisfaction that RVNL
within a short span of its existence and with a lean
organizational structure has matured as a leading
infrastructure provider in railway sector. | hope and
sincerely wish that RVNL would further hone up
managerial and technical skills and set up a new
benchmark of efficiency, quality and timely delivery
of projects. | am confident that RVNL will meet this
challenge successfully and come out with flying
colours.

Last but not the least, | must take this
opportunity to express my sincere thanks and gratitude
towards all my colleagues. | express my sincere thanks
to our esteemed Shareholders, Ministry of Railways,
Ministry of Finance, the State Governments, Zonal
Railways, ADB, Financial Institutions, Banks,

| mm— |
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Stakeholders in various railway projects and National
and International contractors for their unstinted
cooperation to RVNL. | would also like to place on
record my deep appreciationfor the devotion and
dedication of all the RVNL employees who have been
the pillars of strength for the company and delivered
despite various difficulties and obstacles,

I am confident that the company will
continue to get support and cooperation from all the
stakeholders to set new landmarks in the history of
rallway project development and delivery.

sd/-
Rakesh Chopra
(Chairman)
New Delhi
Dated: 1409/2009

Note: This does not purport to form part of the
proceedings of the Annual General Meeting.

ﬁw Vikas Nigam Limited
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Directors’ Report

Distinguished Shareholders,

The Directors of your Company are privileged to
present the Seventh Annual Report of the Company
reflecting the performance of the Company In all
spheres, along with Audited Annual accounts,
Auditors’ Report and review of the accounts by the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India for the
financial year 2009-10.

INTEGRAL REPORTS

In accordance with the guidelines on Corporate
Governance laid down by Department of Public
Enterprises, this report contains & "Report on
Corporate Governance” (Annexure-A) and
“Management Discussion and Analysis Report”
(Annexure-8).

The Report on Corporate Governance underlines
RVNL's philosophy on Corporate Governance,
composition of the Board of Directors of RVNL,
Information related to Board meetings, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and
disclosures as required to be made under the
aforesaid DPE's guidelines. The Report also contains
a Certificate signed by the Managing Director
affirming receipt of compliance with the Code of
Conduct from all Board members and Senior
Management personnel during the year 2009-10
(placed at Annexure "A-1")

It is also supplemented by a Certificate of compliance
on Corporate Governance by a Practicing Company
Secretary at Annexure C,

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report
provides an overview of the affairs of the Company,
the industry scenario, Company’s prospects,
Company's SWOT analysis etc.

It has also an Addendum to the Directors’ Report
containing Management replies to the observations
made by auditors’ in their report.

The detailed Directors’ Report is produced below:
1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

At the outset, the Directors would like to express
their appreciation to the Ministry of Railways’
continued support in ensuring the sustainability of
RVNL as a sound business entity, The decision of the
Ministry to Iincrease the management fee for RVNL

from 1% to 2% of project expenditure and the
provision of an element of incentive will spur RVNL
to continuous growth and improved performance.

During the year 2009-10, your Directors are happy to
report that RVNL has been able to sustain and
improve on the level of financial performance
achieved during the previous year. This is despite the
fact that the projected expenditure on ADB projects
could not be incurred due to non finalization of the
loan conditions.

A.  Einancial Highlights

(i) Project Expenditure : The expenditure on
projects increased from Rs.1654.16 crore in 2008-09 to
Rs.1749.08 crore in 2009-10. During this period, there
has been a substantial increase in the expenditure on
projects executed for SPVs and deposit works (on
behalf of Cochin Port Trust and SAIL) from Rs.257.02
crore to Rs. 399.90 crore which has also contributed
to the income of the Company.

(ii) Net worth : The net worth of the Company has
improved on account of transfer of profits to reserve
and surplus. Accordingly, the Net Worth of the
Company has increased from Rs.2151.07 crore to
Rs.2191.78 crore.
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(iii)  Profit : The gross profit of the Company has
improved from Rs.68.10 crore to Rs.80.83 crore. Out
of this amount, Rs.25.74 crore comes from
Management Fee for execution of Railway projects
and Rs.32.96 crore comes from execution of projects
for other agencies. The profit before tax has
increased from Rs.57.28 crore in 2008-09 to Rs.67.49
crore in 2009-10.

(iv) Reserves and Surplus : At the end of 2008-09,
the reserves and surplus of the Company stood at
Rs.66.56 crore, After taking into account the
proposed dividend and an equivalent amount to be
transferred to general reserves and provision for
Dividend Distribution Tax, the balance stands at Rs
106.76 crore under Reserves and Surplus at the end
of 2009-10.

n

(v) Dividend : With the Increase in the
profitability of the Company, the Directors
recommend an increase in payment of dividend from
Rs.8 crore in 2008-09 to Rs.10 crore in 2009-10 for
consideration by the shareholders,

(vi)  D&G Charges ; The requirement of additional
manpower for execution of projects, increased
liability on account of revision of pay of both CDA and
IDA employees and general cost increase have been
a major challenge in restricting the D&G charges
incurred on project execution. This Is especially so
in RVNL, where expenditure is incurred on items such
as rent, medical facilities, travel etc, which do not
form a part of the D&G charges booked by Rallways.

ﬁMIthngamUmited

However, the Directars are happy to inform
shareholders that the overall extent of D&G charge
has been limited to 4.58% in 2009-10 compared to
4.38% in the previous year. This is still significantly
lower as compared to industry levels,

B. Sources of funds

The total funds received from Ministry of Rallways
and other sources increased from Rs.6596 crore in the
previous year to Rs. 8362.26 crore, The details are as
under:

(1) Equity : Against an authorized share capital of
the Company of Rs.3000 crore, the paid up share
capital of the Company remained at the level of
Rs,2085.02 crore as in the previous year. Ministry of
Railways, Government of Iindia holds the entire share
capital of the Company.

(ii) Project Advance from Ministry of Railways
(MoR) : During the year, MoR released Rs. 946 crore
to RVNL as project advance for execution of projects.
The cumulative amount received as advance stands
at Rs.3355 crore at the end of the year.

(iil)  Loans from IRFC : An additional amount of
Rs.370 crore was received as borrowings from IRFC
during the year. The cumulative amount, thus,
received from IRFC amounts to Rs.1871 crore. The
principal and cost of borrowings, on the borrowings
from IRFC are repaid by MoR through RVNL. The rate
of interest on the funds borrowed from IRFC during
2009-10 has been 8.73%. During the year, an amount
of Rs.43.17 crore and Rs.60.77 crore were paid to IRFC
on account of the repayment of principal and interest
amount respectively,

(iv)]  Other sources of funds : The total equity
raised by the Joint Venture SPVs of RVNL namely
Kutch Railway Company Ltd., Haridaspur Paradip
Rallway Company Ltd., Krishnapatnam Railway
Company Ltd., Angul Sukinda Railway Ltd. and Bharuch
Dahej Railway Company Ltd. stood at Rs. 740 crore till
the end of March, 2010. The increase during the year
amounted to Rs.83.49 crore. This includes Rs. 420.30
crore as equity contribution by partners other than
RVNL

While Kutch Railway Company Ltd. has raised a debt
of Rs.300 crore, Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Ltd.
has also achieved financial closure for raising debt of
Rs. 200 crore in the current year against which Rs, 60
crore has been released by the Financial Institutions.
The other SPVs are also in the process of financial
closure.Project Advance of Rs,57 crore has also been
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received from Cochin Port Trust and Rs.73 crore from
SAIL (through SECR) for execution of projects, during
the year.

C. ADB Loan

The cumulative disbursement under ADB Loan has
increased to US $ 149,68 million upto 2009-10 against
the sanctioned loan amount of US $ 206.19 million,
The loan period has been extended upto December,
2010.

RVNL has been carrying out the activities related to
project preparedness for execution of projects under
the proposed Second Loan under consideration of
sanction by ADB. Upon sanction, RVNL will take up
execution of the concerned projects in right earnest.
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2. PROJECT DEVELOPMENT & PUBLIC PRIVATE
PARTNERSHIP (PPP)

a. Projects transferred

RVNL has been successful In establishing confidence
among various stakeholders of the leading role being
played by the Company in creation of rail capacity
and removal of capacity bottle necks in the country.
In recognition of the same , in addition to already
sanctioned projects, Ministry of Railways has
transferred projects as per details given below,
involving a total capital expenditure of Rs.9307.33 Cr.
involving new line projects and electrification of
340,82 Kms length . In addition to new line &
electrification projects Railway Board has also
transferred the civil engineering work of Diesel Loco
component factory at Dankuni for execution,
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After the closure of financial year 2009-10, Ministry
of Railways has assigned 10 new projects to RVNL for
execution and taking up bankability studies:

I, Cuddapah - Bangalore New Line in Andhra
Pradesh/Karnatska;”

ii. Macheria - Nalgonda New Line in Andhra
Pradesh/ Kamataka,.

iii, Talgoppa - Honnavar New Line in
Karnataka;*

iv. Bijapur - Shahabad New Line in Karnataka,*

v.  Dharwad - Belgaun New Line in Karataka *

vi, Dahod - Indore New Line in Western Rly;

vii. Ahmedabad - Udaipur Gauge Conversion
(Western Rly.) in Gujarat/Rajasthan;

viil. Khurda Road - Bolangir New Line (East Coast
Rly.) in Orissa;

ix, Rayadurg - Tumkur New Line (S W Riy.) and;

x. Dimapur - Xohima New Line [N F Rly.).

¥ RVNL has been odvised to toke up this project through
SPV/BOT as Govt. of Andhra Pradesh has agreed to share
S0% cost of the project.

* These projects are yet to be sanctioned and are being
examined for implementation through PPP as proposed by
Govt. of Karnataka.
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b.  Bankability Status of the Projects:

RVNL has successfully compieted the process of project
development in a timely manner of all the projects in hand.
A consultant has also been appointed for development of
PPP model for execution of rallway projects. An important
project entrusted to RVNL Is for appointment of consultants
to undertake Market & Sectoral Studies, with a view to
understand developments and potential for future traffic to
be moved by Rallways and to devise appropriate strategy
for the same. RVNL Is in the process for appointment of the
consultant. RVNL is also in process for development of
logistics parks and mechanized terminal involving
multimodal transfer between rail and barge.

In addition to above, the process for appointing the
consultants for under mentioned bankability studies has
been initiated as per directions of Rallway Board:

1. Buramara-Chakulla New Line with
upgradation of Rupsa-Buramara BG line on
South Eastern Railway,
2. Electrification of Nallapadu-Guntakal Section
including Gooty-Pendakallu section on South
Central Railway.
¢. ADB Projects

The projects under ADB (Phase-l) funding are in the
stage of completion and commissioning. Out of seven
projects, two projects have been commissioned.
Rehabilitation and resettlement of project affected
persons has been successfully carried out in all the
projects following ADB’s policy of Involuntary
Resettiement by appointing NGOs. RVNL is in the
process of appointing NGOs for 5 projects, which are
to be funded by ADB under the Phase-ll loan.

d. Joint Venture Special Purpose Vehicles

As on date of report, the Company has five Joint
Venture SPVs. The detalled performance of each SPV
is produced below:

L Kutch Railway Company Limited
The first SPV of RVNL commenced operation in the
year 2007, The Company continued to outperform
against the projections in the year 2008-09, with the
substantial growth in the traffic on line, KRC declared
a 3% dividend to its equity shareholders for the year
2008-09. During the current year 2009-10, the SPV
envisages good results. The SPV had already cleared
in advance, part of the term loan taken from the
banks for the implementation of its project. The
details of term loans taken by the company & its
repayment position as on March 2010 are as follows:
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With the implementation of Bhildi- Samdarl GC &
other projects on NWR, the capacity of the section to
carry traffic had substantially increased. Keeping in
line the development of the Rall Infrastructure and
the incremental traffic, Company further foresees
substantial growth of traffic on the section as Kandla
& Mundra Ports; the major ports on the section have
very ambitious development plans, some of which are
already being implemented.

Kutch Railway Company Limited's Board has approved
survey for doubling of Palanpur - Gandhidham line
and the necessary funds for the purpose have been
deposited with Western Railway for carrying out the
Survey.

il.  Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company
Limited
Land has been acquired for 68 Km out of the total
project length of 82 Km, However, it suffered a
setback due to law and order problem in the project
area. Villagers are obstructing execution of work and
are demanding higher compensation, Physical
possession of 213 acres is held up because of demand
for higher compensation. The project is getting
delayed which may further escalate the project cost,
To resolve the demand for higher compensation by
land losers, State Govt. has proposed for payment of
additional compensation and the matter is under
deliberation between Zonal Railways and Rallway
Board for payment of additional amount. As a result,
there will be an additional cost of Rs, 60 crore over
the sanctioned cost of Rs. 55 crore towards land
acquisition, The Board of HPRCL has agreed to pay the
additional compensation for land.

iii. Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited
The SPV has commissioned the first phase of part line
of 23 kms of the project comprising track and OHE
connecting Venkatachalam Railway Station to
Krishnapatnam Port. This has facilitated evacuation of
traffic from/to the Krishnapatnam Port through
rallways. The port holds huge traffic potential.
Loading activities are in progress at both
Nidiguntapalem station and Krishnapatnam station.
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For the second phase of the project, i.e.,
venkatachalam Obulavaripalle |, tunneling
consultancy contract has been awarded on 31.05.2010
and tender for Obulavaripalle-Nethrivaripalli section
is also under finalization. The work for remaining part
of the project is in progress as per target, The
doubling of the portion between Venkachalam to
Krishnapatnam Is being planned.

iv. Bharuch Dahej Rallway Company Limited
The SPV has finalized a loan of Rs. 200 crore with
Canara Bank and thereby has achieved financial
closure. Project was progressing satisfactorily; though
sometime ago, work was interrupted in a stretch of
5 Km in and near Bharuch due to public agitation
demanding diversion of the railway alignment to
outside the city. Meetings had been held at various
levels including Chief Secretary, Govt. of Gujarat,
Minister of Industries, Gujarat, Principal Secretary,
Industries & Mines, Gujarat and Collector, Bharuch in
this connection. After several deliberations, the
work has resumed in June, 2010,

v.  Angul Sukinda Railway Limited

The SPV was formed on 20/02/2009 to execute Angul-
Sukinda new line project. The SPV has got 10% equity
gap to be filled up. Land Acquisition is in process at
appropriate level and award of contract for
construction of an important bridge is in also in
process. Appointment of MD of the SPV is also in
process.

RVNL completed the project development of rail
connectivity to Rewas & Dighi Ports . Execution of
these projects is being envisaged by creation of
project specific SPVs. The proposais are currently
under consideration with Railway Board,

3. PROJECT EXECUTION:

3.1 The performance of RVNL has been
improving consistently since its inception. In
the beginning, some of the projects
transferred to RVNL were being executed by
the Zonal Railways, however, over the years,
the scenario has changed and presently
almost all the works assigned to RVNL are
being developed, designed, tendered,
contracts finalized and works executed by
the Company itsell. Your Directors are happy
to inform that 2009-10 has been an eventful
year in terms of project execution and
implementation, In all, during the year, 391
kms of project length has been completed
and 576 kms of BG line have been successfully

3.2

33

commissioned including Important projects
such as Bhildi-Samdari GC, Mayiladuturai-
Villupuram GC, Phulera-Ajmer section of
Ajmer-Rewari GC, Tiruvallur-Arakkonam 3rd
line. Our efforts towards capacity bullding
in  execution of signaling and
telecommunication works have paid
dividends and during the year important
doubling, 3rd line projects have been
commissioned involving large scale Solid
State interiocking and Nis of major yards on
busy routes,

As part of the Vallarpadam-idapally new line
project, RVNL constructed a 4.6 kms long
bridge over the back waters in the state of
Kerala for providing rail connectivity to the
upcoming International transhipment
terminal at Vallarpadam, This Is the longest
rail bridge in India and was completed in a
record time of only 27 months, The bridge
involved launching of 20 pre-cast 'U' girders
of 20 mtrs span and 200 pre-cast-| girders
of 40 mtrs span in the backwaters and
alignment having curvatures up to 4
degrees. This was a unique achievement as
generally launching of PSC girders has not
been done on curves in railway bridges,
Launching girders specially designed for this
purpose, were imported from China and
progress of launching of one girder per day
was achieved. This project Is a testimony of
RVNL's endeavor to implement complex
projects on fast track using state-of-the-art
technology.

Mayiladuturai-Villupuram GC project has
been implemented in the delta region of the
river Cauvery and has a number of long span
bridges. The launching of 30.4 meter girders
over rivers Kollidam, Gadilam and Pennar
were carried out with specially designed
launching girder having under slung girders
and portable cranes. The entire operation
10 was well planned that not even a
disruption or mishap occurred during the
construction of these bridges. The casting of
these 30.4 m girders was done using
innovating shuttering arrangements in a
single cast consisting of bottom slabs, side
walls and deck slabs. This improved the
quality of concreting due to reduction in
joints and avoiding cold construction joints,
thereby providing better durability to
Increase the longevity of the structure. RVNL
achieved the rare feat of launching 21 such
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girders within In period of only 5 months.
Tiruvallur-Arakkonam 3rd line project
involved the construction of the longest sub-
way under running railway tracks in India.
The 87 m long sub-way passing under 12
running tracks was constructed by using box
pushing technology without any disruption to
running traffic and untoward incident. This
Is yet another exampie of RVNL's capability
of meticulous planning and implementation
of projects.

The Phulera-Ajmer section of the Ajmer-
Rewari GC project was more in the nature
of a doubling project involving 11 block
sections and 10 stations. The project involved
working close to the existing running line.
Meticulous planning and attention to details
resulted in the completion of this 80 kms long
section without any problem. Signaling works
have been carried out without any disruption
to traffic.

During the year, RVNL also had the unique
distinction of successfully launching pre-cast
PSC girders of 43.84 m length each weighing
580 MT for the first time on Indian Railways
for the bridge across the river Luna in
Haridaspur-Paradip new line project using a
specially designed trolley, launching girders
and portal frames.

The Company has achieved great success in
commissioning signaling works assoclated
with doubling, third line, auto signaling, yard
remodeling and gauge conversion. Station
commissioning have increased from 24 in
2007-08 to 33 in 2008-09 and in the year
2009-10, 38 stations have been
commissioned, RVNL has been able to
commission telecom works of optic fibre
communication and 6 Quad cables at a rate
of 270 kms per year. RVNL has also
successfully commissioned yard remodeling of
Phulera, Bhatapura, Urkura connection with
doubling and third line works,

RVNL has executed Railway Electrification of
92 RKM (43 RKM in SCR & 49 RKH in ECoR)
during 2009-10. Further, 200 RKM of RE has
been planned during 2010-11. In 2009-10, a
revised BOQ was prepared for expeditious
execution of railway electrification projects
wherein Over Head Equipment items have
been reduced from 187 to 43 and Traction
Sub Station items from 148 to 34, This inter-
alia will give tangible benefits in terms of
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reduction in supervision and accountal of
material as well as supervision of billings and
verification of prompt payments. Similarly,
a revised BOQ was prepared for General
Electrical Works,

a) Physical size of Projects

RVNL presently has 69 projects, broadly classified
under the following heads:

Strengthening of Golden Quadrilateral - 28 projects
and Diagonals

ProvisionofPortconnectivity « 32 projects
and corridors to hinterland

Kolkata Metro Rall Links - 4 projects
Other New Line Projects - 3 projects
Construction of Workshop & Multl - 2 projects

Functional Complexes

Of the 69 projects, 67 pertain to construction of
railway lines which are grouped under five categories.
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These projects are spread all over wre country and for
efficient implementation of projects, Project
Implementation Units (PIUs) have been established
at 12 locations i.e. New Delhi, Mumbai, Kolkata,
Chennai, Secunderabad, Bhubaneshwar, Bilaspur,
Bhopal, Jaipur, Bangalore, Pune & Raipur,

b) Status of physical progress of projects
The status of the 69 projects Is as under:-

1. Projects completed upto March-10: 2
2. Projects under implementation -
3. Projects under sanction and $ 3

development stage
During the year, RVNL physically completed 3 kms of
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doubling, 287 kms of gauge conversion, 9 kms of new
line and 92 kms of railway electrification works, i.e.
a total of 391 kms. RVNL has till now completed a total
of 422 Kms of doubling, 1517 Kms of gauge
conversion, 185 Kms of new lines and and 1152 Kms.
of Railway Electrification. Thus as on 31.03.10, 3276
km out of a total length 7747 km of 69 projects
assigned to RVNL , have been completed,

¢} Projects commissioned during 2009-10

RVNL commissioned and opened for traffic ,72 kms
of doubling, 404 kms of gauge conversion, 9 kms of
new line and 92 kms of railway electrification. This
includes projects opened for traffic operations during
the year even if part of the line may have been
physically completed in previous years. Details of
the works commissioned during 2009-10 are as
under:-

S.No. Name of Project Length (Km)
1 Balance Section of Hospet Guntakal 3
Doubling
2 Pullampet - Bhakarapet Section of 43
Gooty-Renigunta - Patch Doubling
3 Bhildl-Samdarl Gauge Conversion 223
4 Phulera - Ajmer Section of Ajmer- 80
Phulera-Ringus-Rewari Gauge
Conversion
. 3 Villupuram - Cuddalore - 101
Sirkazhi Section of Thanjavur-
Villupuram Gauge Conversion
6. Idapalii-Vallarpadam New Une 8.36
7. Tiruvallur - Arakkonam 3rd Line 26
8 Nandlur - Bhakrapet & Bhakrapet - 43
Kadapa Section of Renigunta-
Guntakal Railway Electrification
9 Tomka - Harichanandpur Section of 49
Tomka Banspan| Rallway
Electrification

d) Projects under Implementation
S.No. Name of Project

Doubling
1 Khurda Road - Barang 3rd Line

N s W

27.

29.

Cuttack - Barang

Rajatgarh - Barang

New Delhi - Tilak Bridge 5th & 6th Line
Palwal - Bhuteswar 3rd Line

Aligarh - Ghaziabad 3rd Line

Balance Section of Attipattu - Korukkupet 3rd
Line

Balance Section of Gooty - Renigunta Patch
Raichur - Guntakal

Panskura - Kharagpur 3rd Line
Tikiapara - Santragachi

Balance Section of Bilaspur - Urkura 3rd Line
Bhopal - Bina 3rd Line

* Jakhpura- Haridaspur 3rd Line

Salka Road - Annuppur (With Flyover)
Daund - Guibarga

Rajgoda - Tamluk (In. Cabin)
Sambalpur - Titlagarh

Raipur - Titlagarh

Hospet - Tinaighat

Goelkera - Mancharpur 3rd Line
Banaspani - Jakhpura

Tiruvallur - Arakkonam 4th Line
Villupuram - Dindigul

Tamluk Jn. Cabin - Basulya Sutahata
Gauge Conversion

Bharuch - Samni - Dahej

New Line

Haridaspur - Paradeep

Balance Section of
Krishnapatnam

Dalli - Rajhara - Raoghat

Obulavaripalle -
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30. Angul - Sukinda

31 Buramara - Chakulia - New Lline With
Upgrading of Rupsa - Buramara

32,  Dankuni - Furfura

33, Cuddapah - Bangalore

34, Dimapur - Kohima
Railway Electrification

35. Balance Section of Renigunta - Guntakal
Electrification

36, *Balance Section of Tomka -Banaspani

37. Pune - Guntakal

38. Daund-Manmad Incl. Puntamba- Shirdi
Kolkata Metro Rail Line Projects :

39. Baranagar - Barrackpore & Dakshineswar

40. Dum Dum Airport - New Garia via Raerhat

41 Joka - Binoy Badal Dinesh Bagh via Majerhat

42.  Naupara(Ex.) - Baranagar Extension of Dumdum
- Baranagar

Other than Track Construction Works :

43, Construction of Multi-Functional Complexs
(MFCs)

44.  Civil Engineering Works in connection with
Diesel Loco Component Factory, Dankuni

Note:- S.No. 14 & 36 are material modification of
Daitari - Banspani New Line Project.
€) Projects under Sanction and Development

1.  Surat - Hajira New Line
2.  Rewas Port New Line
3. Dighi Port New Line

f) Projects Handed Over to Rallways

The following projects have been handed over to
Zonal Railways during 2009-10:

1. Thanjavur-Villupuram Gauge Conversion
2.  Hospet Guntakal Doubling
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3, Phulera - Gahlota Section of Ajmer-Phulera-
Ringus-Rewari Gauge Conversion

4. Bhildi-Samdari Gauge Conversion
5. Section of Gooty-Renugunta patch doubling

g) ADB funded projects

RVNL Is implementing seven ADB funded projects for
the first time in Indian Railways. In addition to these
projects, it has been decided to fund another five
projects namely Raipur-Titlagarh doubling,
Sambhalpur-Titlagarh doubling, Hospet-Tinaighat
doubling, Daund-Gulbarga doubling and Pune-
Guntakal RE through a second ADB loan, The funding
by ADB requires compliance of various loan covenants
on resettlement and rehabilitation of project affected
persons, procurement of works and stores following
international competitive bidding and
implementation of plans for mitigation of social and
environmental Impact norms and RVNL has taken
action for project preparedness so that tenders can
be floated on receipt of "in principle" approval of
ADB. During the calendar year 2009, RVNL has claimed
reimbursement of expenditure of Rs. 119.79 Cr. and
the target for 2010 is Rs. 178.56 Cr.

h) Contracts awarded during 2009-10

The following contracts were awarded by the
Company during the year under review:

*  Construction of Roadbed, major and minor
bridges, track linking (excluding supply of
rails, thick web switches & sleepers) S&T and
OHE & General Electrical work in connection
with 3rd line between Habibgan) & Bina
(144.76) km on Bhopal Division of West
Central Railway Package No.2 between
GanjBasoda (Excl) to Sanchi (Incl) chainage
928.500 to 879.750 (Km48.756)(IFB No.2008/
RVNL/Mumbai/Bina-Ganj Basoda-Sanchi-
Habibgan| (150 cr.).

*  Construction of Roadbed, major and minor
bridges, track linking (excluding supply of
rails, thick web switches & sleepers) S&T and
OHE & General Electrical work in connection
with 3rd line between Habibgan) & Bina
(144.76) km on Bhopal Division of West
Central Railway Package No.1 between
Binalincl) to Gan| Basoda (Incl) chainage
975.16 10 928.500 (KmA6.66)(IF8 No.2008/
RVNL/Mumbai/Bina-Ganj Basoda-Sanchi-
Habibganj (141.87 Cr).

*  Construction of Roadbed, major and minor
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bridges, track linking (excluding supply of
rails, thick web switches & sleepers) S&T and
OHE & General Electrical work in connection
with 3rd line between Habibganj & Bina
(144.76) km on Bhopal Division of West
Centra! Railway Package No.3 between
Sanchi(Excl) to Habibgan|{Incl) chainage
879,750 to B30.850 (Km 48.9] IFB No.200&
RVNL/Mumbali/Bina-Gan| 8asoda-Sanchi-
Habibganj (135,65 Cr.).

*  Construction of roadbed, supply of ballast,
major and minor bridges, residential and
service bulldings and general electrical work
etc for Dallirajhara and Xeoti section (42 Xm)
In connection with a new rail link between
Dallirajhara and Rowghat in Raipur Division
of South East central railway in the state of
Chatisgarh, India, {97.81Cr).

¢  Design, supply, erection, testing and
commissioning of 132 XV single circuit two
phase line on DC tower from Keonjhar-TSS to
Harichandanpur-T5S to Harichandanpur-15S
including 13225 KV, 2x21.6 MVA traction sub
station at Harichandanpur and their
associate equipments in Tomka-Jaroll section
under Khurda road division of East Coast
Railway in the state of Orissa. (18.44 Cr)

*  Construction of quarters and service buildings
including approach road in connection with
Civil and electrical works of railway
electrification of Nandalur - Guntakal section
between Kondpuram(Excl) - Guntakal (Incl)
stations on Guntakal Division of South
Central Railway (12.74 Cr).

*  Earthwork, bridges and site facilities
between new Manubolu station and
Venkatachalam Road Junction in SC Rallway
(12.95 Cr.).

*  Construction of bridge No.601 at Ch 289600
between Kamalapuram - Yerragudipadu , Br
No.743 at Ch 373/900) between Kimali -
Juturu and Br No.744 PSC slab) at CH: 374/
500 between Kimali - Juturu stations In
connection with patch doubling work of
Gooty -Pullampet project on Guntakal
division of South Central Rallway.{11.45 Cr.).

*  Construction of quarters and service bulldings
including approach road in connection with
Civil and electrical works of railway
electrification of Nandalur - Guntakal section
between Kondpuram(incl) stations on
Guntakal Division of South Central Railway
(9.71 Cr.).

i) Important contracts awarded after the
closure of Financial year

After the closure of the financial year and as on date
of report, following contracts have been awarded:-

e  Construction of roadbed, major and minor
bridges and track linking (excluding supply of
ralls, thick web switches and line PSC
sleeper), S&T and OHE and General electrical
work in connection with 3rd line between
Posita - Manoharpur (11.6 Km) on
Chakradharpur Division of South Eastern
Railway in Jharkhand state, India.(65.47 cr.)

4. PERSONNEL DEVELOPMENT:

The HR policies of RVNL seek to align the capabilities
of skilled and qualified manpower with the
organization's ongoing business plan and
requirements. The manpower requirement of RVNL
, at present, is met mainly through deputation from
Indian Rallways. As on 31st March 2010, there were
245 employees on its roll including regular
employees and deputationists, The total number of
female employees is 11.

However, as a part of long-term manpower strategy,
the company has introduced an attractive induction
policy through permanent absorption of
deputationists in the regular cadre. As on 315t March
2010,12 deputationists have been absorbed on
permanent basis in the Company. The Company has
also framed a clear and concise Recruitment and
Promotion Policy to effectively identify, attract and
retain capable employees. As part of the policy, the
Company Is recruiting technical and experienced
persons from the Railways & PSUs and fresh and
young hand from the open market.

The Company has implemented the 2nd Pay Rewision
Committee's recommendations for CPSEs. As part of
the recommendations, the Company has also
constituted a Remuneration Committee to decide
payment of Performance Related Pay (PRP) / PLI to
the employees. Accordingly, part PRP @ 12.5% has
been disbursed to the employees as an interim
measure during the year.

Employees are viewed as an asset to the enterprise
whose value is enhanced by developing individual
potential and skill. As a part of this philosophy, the
employees have been nominated to various training
programmes and seminars relevant to their job
requirements,
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As a welfare measure, the company maintains
spacious and aesthetically designed well-equipped
offices not only at the corporate level but also in the
fields. In addition to a liberal medical facility, the
Company also has in-house consultation facility of
Allopathic, Homoeopathic and Ayurvedic doctors in
the office premises. The Company has also
periodically been organizing social functions for the
employees and their wards. As a result of all these
efforts, the Company has maintained cordial relations
with its employees during the year.

Particulars of Employees under Section 217 (2A) of
Companies Act, 1956

Employees of the Company who have drawn
remuneration exceeding the limits lald down under
the provisions of section 217(2A) of the Companies
Act read with Companies (Particulars of Employees)
Rules, 1975 as amended from time to time is placed

as AnnexurerAZ,
5. COMPLIANCES

a. Vigilance

The Vigilance department in RVNL consists of a Part
time CVO, one Manager and one Assistant Manager
reporting to CVO. The major thrust of the Vigllance
Department in RVNL is preventive intervention
through educating the officers and employees about
procedures and guidelines.

The Vigilance Awareness Week was celebrated in
RVNL from 3rd November, 2009 to 7th November,
2009, A pledge taking ceremony chaired by Managing
Director/RVNL was held on 03/11/2009, during which
the pledge was administered to all the officers and
staff of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited. Banners/posters
relating to vigilance awareness were displayed in the
RVNL's office.

A seminar cum interactive session was held on
06.11.2009 in the Corporate office of RVNL, wherein
Shri A.P. Mishra, Adviser/(Vig)/Railway Board
delivered a lecture on various issues relating to
vigilance. The same was attended by Shri 5.5, Gupta,
ED/Vig(E)/Railway Board, Shri A.K. Dutta, ED/Vig
(elect), Managing Director, Directors and all officers
of RVNL. The session was highly inter-active and
informative and was appreciated by all. The Fourth
Vigilance Bulletin was released by Shri A.P. Mishra,
Adviser/Vigilance/Railway Board during the Vigilance
awareness week,

b. Memorandum of Understanding
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The Company secured a rating of "Very Good” by
Department of Public Enterprises for the performance
of the Company for the year 2008-09 on the basis of
the Memorandum of Understanding between RVNL
and Ministry of Railways and the achievement of the
committed targets,

During the year, the Company signed a Memorandum
of Understanding (MoU) with Ministry of Railways
fixing its physical and financial targets for the year
2010-11. RVNL has committed to achieve 44 kms of
Gauge Conversion, 233 kms of Doubling and 142 kms
of Raillway Electrification.

c.  Right to Information Act, 2005

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited as a wholly owned
Government company under Ministry of Railways has
put necessary systems in place so that directives
issued under the Act are complied with suitably. RVNL
has nominated an Appellate Authority/Officer,
Central Public Information Officer and one Project
level Assistant Public Information Officer for each of
the Project Implementing Unit of the Company. The
details of the officers nominated under the Act have
been uploaded on the website of RVNL to facilitate
availability of information about the affairs of the
Company.

d. Mca21

Under the flagship of MCA 21 launched by Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, RVNL has been duly filing all its
forms and returns online. Director |dentification
Number (DIN) of all the Directors are in place and
Digital Signatures of Managing Director, Director/
Finance and Company Secretary have been obtained.

e. Rajbhasha (Official Language)

RVNL has been making concerted efforts to
Implement the directives of the Government of India
on use of Rajbhasha (Official Language) in RVNL. The
Rajbhasha department Wing in RVNL is under HR
department with a part time Mukhya Rajbhasha
Adhikari and Upmukhhya Rajbhasha Adhikari and a
regular Sr Executive. The Mukhya Rajbhasha Adhikari
and Upmukhhya Rajbhasha Adhikari maintain
constant coordination with Rajbhasha Directorate of
the Rallway Board,

During the year 2009-10, one Workshop and three
meetings of Rajbhasha Implementation Committee
of RVNL with the representatives of Railway Board’s
Directorate have been held, Besides this, Hindi Essay
competition, Noting/Drafting competition and Quiz
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competition were held on the accasion of Hindi Divas
on 14th September 2009 and Rs. 17,250/- was awarded
amongst successful participants in form of cash prizes.
Fourteen officers/Staff in the Corporate Office who
are using Rajbhasha in drafting notes and letters were
selected and given cash awards. Apart from this,
Secretarial staffs of RVNL are being regularly deputed
to Hindi Computer application training programme
organized by C-Dac, Noida as a continuous effort.

The Company has set up a reading room cum library
in the corporate office having a good collection of
Hindi books, newspapers and periodicals, The RVNL
Website has a Hindi version pages also and is quite
popular among the users.

In the year, Deputy Director, Rajbhasha Vibhag, Home
Ministry has inspected Corporate Office and Bhopal
Unit to assess progress of use of Rajbhasha and has
expressed satisfaction on progressive use of Hindi in
official works in RVNL.

f.  Industrial Relations
During the year, Industrial relations remained cordial.

g Presidential Directive

During 2009-10, the Company received Presidential
Directive from Ministry of Railways on 17th July, 2009
for implementation of recommendations of 2nd 1DA
Pay Revision Committee for CPSEs. The
recommendations have been duly complied with.

h. Particulars Relating To Conservation Of Energy,
Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings
and Outgo etc.

(i} Conservation of Energy and Technology
Absorption

The Company is aware of the responsibility to
conserve energy and to keep the energy cost at the
barest minimum level. At present, within the scope
available, systems have been put in place for energy
conservation. It has been achieved by designing the
office lay out in the most energy-friendly manner.
Appropriate systems are in place to conserve energy
by using it only when work so demands.

(W) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
During the financial year 2009-10, the Company spent
Rs. 5.24 lakhs in foreign currency towards foreign
travel of RVNL officials for study visits etc . The
Company also spent Rs. 34.47 lakhs in foreign
currency (fee paid to Padeco , Japan) towards

consultancy services for monitoring of
implementation of ADB funded, Phase-1 projects. The
Company did not earn any foreign exchange.

6. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Company in pursuance
of section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 as
amended hereby confirms:

I, That in the preparation of the annual
accounts, all the applicable accounting
standards alongwith proper explanation
have been followed and there has been no
material departure,

I, That such accounting policies were selected
and applied consistently and such judgments
and estimates were made that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and Profit & Loss of the Company
for the year ended on 31st March 2010,

Il That proper and sufficient care has been
taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

IV. That the Annual Accounts have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During April 2009 to March 2010, five meetings of the
Board of Directors were held with one meeting in
quarter ending June 2009, two meetings in quarter
ending September 2009, one meeting in quarter
ending December 2009 and one in quarter ending
March 2010.

Mr. S.C. Agnihotri, took over as Managing Director of
the Company w.e.f. 27.01.2010. Mr, Mukul Jain
assumed the charge of Director (Operations) of RVNL
on 16,06.2010. Mr, Samar Jha, Additional Member
{Budget)/ Railway Board was nominated as Part-time
official Director as a special case on the Board of the
Company w.e.f 05.01,.2010, His nomination as Director
on the Board of RVNL was withdrawn by Ministry of
Railways vides its Order No. 2003/PL/2/7 dated
14.07.2010. Mr. S.K.Malik, Additional Member{CE),
Raflway Board was nominated as part-time (official)
Director on the Board of RVNL w.e.f 14.01.2010.

Mr.R.N.Aga was appointed as part-time (non-official)

| mm— |
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(Independent) Director on the Board of the Company
w.ef 17.02.2010.

Mr. D.C. Mitra ceased to be Managing Director on the
Board of RVNL w.e.f 30.09.2009 due to his
superannuation. Mr. Ranjan K, Jain ceased to be
Director (Operations) of RVNL w.e.f. 31,08.2009 on
completion of his tenure. Mr. M.S.Khan, Additional
Member{Budget), Railway Board and Mr. R. P. Gupta,
Adviser(Works) ceased to become part-time official
Directors on the Board of Company w.e.f 31,10.2009
and 30,092009 respectively due to their
superannuation from Ministry of Rallways.

The Company would like to place on record its deep
appreciation and gratitude to all the Directors who
ceased to hold office during the year for their
valuable contribution in the growth of the Company.
The Company compliments them for their support,
knowledge and input provided during their tenure of
directorship in RVNL.

On the date of report, the strength of the Company

is seven Directors comprising of four functional
directors including Managing Director, two part-time
official directors including part-time (official)
Chairman and one (part-time) (non-official)
{Independent) Director.

The following Directors are holding office as on the
date of the report:-

1. Mr.Rakesh Chopra -~ From 05.06.2009
Member Engineering/Railway onwards
Board & Chairman/RVNL
(Part-time official)

2. Mr.S.CAgnihotri - From27.01.2010 (AN)

ﬁmwmmmm

8.  AUDITORS

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India has
appointed M/s Bhushan Bensal Jain Associates,
Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2010, The
Board would like to thank them for the valuable
support and guidance during the audit of accounts
under review.

9. COMMENTS OF COMPTROLLER & GENERAL
(C&AG) OF INDIA

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India has
undertaken supplementary audit on accounts of the
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2010 under
Section 619(4) of the Companies Act, 1956, The
comments of the C& AG on the Annual Accounts of
the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2010
shall also form part of this report,

10. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We record our appreciation and thanks to Ministry of
Railways (MoR), Ministry of Finance, various banks,
the Zonal Rallways, RITES, IRCON, RLDA for their
continued interest and support to the Company.

We take this opportunity to applaud the employees
of the Company at all levels, which are the pillar of
strength of the Company, for their invaluable
contribution to the growth of the Company.

We would also like to thank the officials of
Comptroller & Auditor General of India for their co-
operation and guidance during the year under review,

On this occasion, we would also like to acknowledge

Managiog Director/RVNL. onmends the contribution made by all the predecessors, who
3. Mr. Harish Chandra, ~ From 11.03.2005 (an)  have been associated with RVNL and whom efforts
Directoe {Finance}/RVNL onwards have brought the Company to its present status and
have played key role in attainment of the Company's
4. Ms. Gita Mishra - From 13.10.2008 (FN)  aims and goals in all spheres.
gl J oo For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
5. Mr. Mukul Jain ~ From 16.06.2010 (AN} sd/ sd/
Director (Operations)/RVNL onwards (5.C.Agn (Harish Ch a)
6. Mr. S.X. Mallk -~ From 14.01.2010 Managing Director Director/Finance
AM(CE)/Railway Board & onwards
Director/RVYNL New Delhi
Dt: 27.07.2010
7.Mr RN.Aga ~ From 17.02.2010
Part-time (non-official) onwards
Director
| em— |
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Report on Corporate Governance

1. Company's Code On Corporate Governance

RVNL's Code of Corporate Governance is “To act in
accordance with the highest standards of professional
Integrity, hanesty, ethical conduct and to be proficient,
professional and profitable by upholding and promating
transparency and accountability.”

Values of RVNL

The values that RVNL seeks to uphold are:

Zeal to attain excellence in performance;
To act as a team;

Honesty and justice in dealings;

Firm obedience in commitments undertaken;
Timely complietion of work;

Respect for dignity and potential of
individuals;

*  Devation and pride towards RVNL

Annexure “A°

2. Board Of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of seven
Directors, comprising of four whole-time Directors induding
the Managing Director, two Government nominees (on
behalf of Ministry of Railways) acting as part-time official
Directors Including the part- time official Chairman and
one part-time (non-official) (Independent ) Director, as on
the date of report,

The appointment of a Director on the Board of the Company
is approved by the President of India in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company,

The composition of the Board of RVNL, , along with
Directorships held by them and their attendance in the
Board meetings held during the finandal year 2009-10 and
in the last Annual General Meeting  is reproduced in the
table below:

Directors on the Board of RVNL as on the date of Report

SNo | Category of Directors Name of Directors Number of Total No. of No, of Last AGM
Committee attended
Chalrmanships in | Memberships/ meetings
public companies | chairmanships in attended
Including RVNL public companies
and excluding Including
private RVNL and excluding
companies private companies
n Chairman (Part-time official)
1 Member Engineering Mr. Rakesh Chopra*® a Nl 3 Yes
Railway Board
i Whole-time Director
i Managing Director Mr. S.C Agnihotri* 1 As Member- 1* 1 Yes
3 Director (Finance) Mr, Hansh Chandra®** 2° Lo S Yes
K Director (Personned) SmL Gita Mishra * 1 iy 3 Yes
5. Director (Operations) Mr, Mukul Jain®s 1 Nl 1 NA,
) Director ( Part-time official)
3 Addl. Member (CE) Mr. 5K Malk™ F As Member-2 1 NA
Railway Board
(v Director ( Part-time non-official)
7. Independent Directors | Mr. R N.Aga" P As Chairman-2° 1 NA
As Membes-1
| om—
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AMr. Chopra is Chairman on the Board of Konkan Railway Corporation Limited, IRCON Intermational Limited and Director
on the Board of Deithi Metro Roil Corporation Ltd..

*Mr. SC. Agnihotri took over as MD /RYNL w.e.f27.01.2010 and wos Member of Audit Committee til 28.03.2010 ond ogain
from 27,7,.2010.

*“*Mvr. Harish Chandra is member of Remuneration Committee of RVNL we.f 29.03.2010 and was Director on the Board of
HPRCL till 16.12.2009.

#Smt. Gita Mishra was member of Remuneration Committee of RVNL till 31.10.2009
AAMr.Mukul Join took over as Divector (Operations), RVNL w.e.f. 16.06.2010

#4Mr. S.X. Mailk is o member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of RVNL and is o Director in Chennai Metro
Roll Limited and holds Choirmanship in Angul Sukinda Rallwoy Ltd.

@Mre R N. Aga is Choirman of Remuneration Committee and member of Audit Committee of RVNL. He olso held directorship
in NMODC tifl 04.06.2010 and was Chairman of Audit Committee of NMDC ,

Ceased to hold office during the year 2009-10 and thereafter

SNo | Category of Directors Name of Directors Number of Total No. of No. of Last AGM
Directorships/ Comemittee Soard attended
Chalrmanships in | Memberships/ meetings
public companies | chairmanships in attended
Including RVNL public companias
and excluding including
private RVNL and
companies excluding private
companies
) Whole-time Directors
| 8 Director (Operations) WM. Ranjan K Jain®* 2* L 3 Yes
(Ceased to be
Derector/Operations w.e §
31.08,2005 on completion of his
tenurme |
2 Managing Director M, D.C. Matra** 1 As Mamber-1** 3 Yos
(Ceased 10 be Managing
Director we.e.f 30.09,2008 due to
superannaution )
3 Diroctor (Projocts) WM. S, C. Agnihotri~ bl Nit a Yo
(Relinguished the charge of
Director/Projects w.e.f
27.01.2010 on s appaintment
s Managing Director weef
27.01.2010( AN) —
o Director { Part-time official)
4 Addl. Member {Budget) Mr. Samar Iha” 1 As Chairman-1’ Nil NA
Rallway Board
(Coased to be Director on the
Board of RWNL w.e f.
14.07.2010)
5 Addl. Membar (Budget) M. M.S. Khan® 1 As Chairman-2° 2 No
Radway Board
(Coased to be Director on the
Board of RVNL w.e.f. 31.10.2009}
6. Adviser (Works) M RP_Gupta iod As Member - 2 3 No
Radway Board
(Ceased to be Director on the
Board of RVNL w.e {. 30.09.2009)

— 221
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*Mvr. Ranjan K. Jain was Director on the Boord of Haridaspur-
Parodyp Railway Company Limited

**Mr. Mitra was member of Audit Committee of RVNL.
#Mr. Agnihotri was Dicector on the Boord of HPRCL tifl
16.12.2009.

SMr. Samar Jha was Chairman of Audit Committee of RVNL
@Mr. Khon was Chairman of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of RVNL

SSMr. Gupta was member of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of RVNL aad held directorship in
Bangolore Metro Roil Corporation Limited

Notes :

3. The Directorships and memberships in the
Committees being held by the Directors of
RVNL are within the limits laid down under
Companies Act, 1956,

b The term “part-time official" indicates
Directors nominated by the Government
(Ministry of Rallways) on the Board of RVNL
who are officials of the Ministry of Rallways.

¢ The term “part-time non-official" indicates
the Directors who are indepandent and do not
hold any office in the Government.

d.  The membership in the Audit Committee,
Shareholders’ Grievance Committee and
Remuneration Committee are being
considered for counting the number of total
memberships in Committees,

The Board of Directors of RVNL met five timos during the
financial year 2009-10 to transact business with one
meeting in the quarter ending June 2009, two meetings in
the quarter ending September 2009, ane meeting in the
quarter ending December 2009 and one meeting in the
quarter ending March 2010.

The detailed agenda along with explanatory notes was
circulated in advance for all the Board meetings. All the
meetings of the Board of Directors were held at the registered
office of the Company.

In all cases of absence of a Director, Leave of Absence was
granted under clavse (g) of sub-section (1) of section 283
of the Companies Act, 1956, Detalls of the dates of the
meeting of Board of RVNL for the year under review are
mentioned below:

39th meeting of Board of Directors 30th April, 2009

40th meeting of Board of Directors 09th July, 2009

413t meeting of Board of Directors | 13th August 2009
Mm

43rd meeting of Board of Directors 29th March, 2010

3. Brief resume of Directors appointed during/
after the closure of the financial year

1) Mr. 5.C. Agnihotri, Managing Director, RVNL , we.f
27.01.2010 (AN)

M. Satish Agnhotri has taken over as Managing Drector
of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited on 27.01.2010. Mr. Satish
Agnihotri, M.E, (Structures) and B.E. (Ciwil) from IIT, Roorlee,
joined the Indian Rallway Service of Engineers in 1984,
Before assuming the charge of Managing Director of RVNL
on 27,01.2010 he was working as Director {Projects) of the
company since 4th July 2007. Before 4th July 2007, he
headed the Metro Project Directorate of Ministry of
Railways dealing with metro lines being developed in
metropolitan cities. While working as OS0 to Member
Engineering, he was involved in laying down the policies,
standards, planning, implementation and itoring of
Infrastructure projacts over all Indian Rallways. As
Executive Director (Corporate Coordination) & 05D/
Chairman Railway Board, he was engaged in 3

dedsion making in the Ministry of Railways. In his career,
spanning over 24 years, he worked on important projects
including construction of a double line bridge over river
Ganga, doubling of tracks, major yard remodelings, ete,

)] Mr.Mukul Jain, Director(Operations), RVNL w.e.f.
16.06.2010 (AN)

Mr. Muku! Jain has been appointed as Director
(Operations), RVNL w.e.f 16.06.2010. Mr, Jain is a BTech
in Mechanical Engineering from LLT. Delhi, and a Master
of Engineering in Logistics & Supply Chain Management
from Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Boston and
Zaragota Logistics Center, Spain. Before joining RVNL, he
was working as Executive Director in Container
Corporation of India Ltd, (CONCOR), a PSU of Government
of India. He had joined Indian Rallway Traffic Service
(IRTS) in 1981, After working in various capacities in
operating, commercial and general administration in SE
Rallway and Western Railway, he joined as Head of
CONCOR’s Western Region in 1995. He then headed North
Western Region of CONCOR from 2003 to 2006, He has
worked as Head of Planning & Deveiopment, Air Cargo and
Shipping In its Corporate Office, New Delhi. He specializes
in transport strategy, design of Intermodal Terminals and
hinterland port connectivity. He has been credited with the
establishment of highly successful Container Freight
Stations in Mulund (Mumbai), Dronagiri Node( INPT),
Vadodara and at several other locations In Western India.

i) Mr. Samar Jha, AM (Budget), Ministry of Rallways
and Part-time (official) Director w.e.! 05.01.2010 till
14,07.2010

Mr. Samar Jha, AM {Budget), Rallway Board has been

| e |
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nominated as part-time (official) on the Board of RVNL wel
05.01.2010. Barn on 09.12.1950, he is an IRAS officer of
1974 batch. In a career spanning 36 years, he has extensive
experience In Finance and Accounts. He has held various
key positions/assignments in Government of India, working
in different parts of the country on the railway network and
railway projects, at the zonal level, RITES and in the Ministry
of Railways. He has attended trainings in general and
strategic management in United Kingdom. As AM (Budget),
Railway Board, he is in-charge of the overall oudget of Indéan
Railways, appraisal of all major investment proposals,
negotiations with multilateral and bilateral funding
agencies.

) Mr. S.K. Malik, AM (CE) , Ministry of Railways and
Part-time (official) Director wef 14.01. 2010

Me. S.K. Malik, AM (CE), Rallway Board has been nominated
as part-time official Director on the Board of RVYNL
w.ef14,01,2010. Born on 15.11.1950, he Is an IRSE officer
of 1973 batch and joined Indian Railways on 11.11.1974,
He heid various prestigious positions in Indian Railways
including CAD {Const.)/NCR, Allahabad, CAO (Const.)/ NWR,
Jaipur, CAC (Const.)/ECoR, Hajipur, ED/ Vigilance
(Engg. ), Railway Board, DRM/ 8husawal, Central Railway and
Chief Engineer/Construction/Northern Rallway. In over 36
years of experience in Indian Rallways, he has undergone
various trainings in India and abroad and has many
technical papers on projects to his credit

v) Mr. R, N, Aga, part-time {non-official} {Independent)
Director wef 17.02.2010

Me. R.N. Aga has been nominated as part-time {non-official)
[Independent) Director on the Board of RVNL
w.ef17.02.2010. Born on 09.07,1945, Mr. Aga, is a post-
graduate in Physics from Delhd University, After completing
his post-graduation, he joined Indian Rallway Traffic Service
in 1968. During his career of 37 years with Indian Ralways,
he worked in various Zonal railways In different capacities
including Director/Traffic Research, RDSO, Divisional
Railway Manager, General Manager and Member (Traffic),
Rallway Board and ex-officio Secretary to Government of
India, As Member (Traffic), Railway Board, he also
functioned as Chairman of CONCOR, IRCTC, and Pipavav Rail
Corporation Limited (PRCL). After his superannuation in
2005, he joined Asian Institute of Transport Development
(AITD) and has also been on the Board of Directors of NMDC
Ltd., as Independent Director.

4. Audit Committee:

i Xorms of Referance:The Committee acts in
accordance with the terms of reference under
Companies Act and guidelines of Corporate

ﬁmwmm;mum

Governance |aid down by Department of
Public Enterprises. The scope of the
Committee mentioned in brief s:

a. Yo have the authority to investigate Into any
matter as may be prescribed under section
292A;

b.  To discuss with the auditors periodically
about internal control systems;

¢ Todiscuss and decide about the scope of audit
Including the observations of auditors;

d  To review the half-yearly and annual
financial statements before submission to the
Board and also ensure compliance of intemal
control systems;

e To investigate into any matter relating 1o
financial management Including the audit
report;

f.  Tooversee the Company's financial reporting
process and suggest recommendations, if
any, to the Board;

g8 To fix the audit fees of statutory auditors ;

k. To consider changes in accounting policies
and practices with reasons thereof, and
significant adjustments made in financial
statements;

I. To discuss qualifications In the draft audit
report etc;

|- To review the adequacy of internal controls
procedures.

I, Comoposition of the Committee <
The Company has in place an Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors pursuant to section 292A of Companies Act and
guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by Department
of Public Enterprises. The Committee has been reconstituted
as and when there is change in the independent or part-
time Cirectors of the Company,

On the date of report, the Audit Committee of RVNL consists
of three Directors comprising of one Independent Director,
one [part- time) official Director and Managing Director.
Prior to this, i.e. from 29th March, 2010 to 26th July, 2010,
the Committee consisted of three Directors including two
{part- time) official Directors and independent director,
Earfier, due to non -availability of Independent Directors on
the Board of RVNL, from 11th February, 2010 to 28th March,
2010, the Committee consisted of two part-time (official)
Directors and Managing Director. However, due to
superannuation of two members of the Committee on
30.09.2009 and third member on 31.10.2009 and non-
namination of Independent and part-time Directors on the
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Board of RVNL, the Audit Committee could not be constituted
from October, 2009 to 10th February, 2010,

The Committee met two times during the financial year 2009-
10, on Gth July, 2009 and 25th February, 2010. The details

on 29,03,2010. On the date of repoct, the
Remuneration Committea of RVNL consists of
the following:

of attendance of each member are mentioned below:

S.No NameofDhkector Status

> 1 Mr. RN Ags Chairman
[iIndependent Director)

2 M. S K Malik, Ditector Member
[part-time] (official)

3. Mr. Harish Chandra, Member
Director{Finance)

Mr. Ajay Kumar, GM (P&A) is Secretary to the Committee,

[

Name of Membaor | Meeting held | Attendance
with Status (during their
respective
tenure)
Mr. Samar Jha, 1 1
Chairm an
Mr.5. K. Mailk, 1 1
Member
Mr.S.C.Agnihotri, 1 1
Member
Mr R N Aga, NIl NA.
Member
Mr. M. 5. Khan, 1 1
Chalrm an
Mr.R.P Gupta, 1 1
Member
MrD.C. Mitra, 1 1
Member

Meetings and Attendance during the veac
Company met once during the financial year
2009-10 on 25.09.2009, The details of
attendance are mentioned below:

Mrs. Suman Kalra, Company Secretary Is Secretary of the

Committee.

5. Remuneration Committee

. The Committee has been

Tecms of Refecance:
constituted to decide the annual bonus/PRP

variable pay pool and policy for it
distribution as per the recommendations of
2nd IDA Pay Revision Committee.

i i . As per
recommendations of 2nd IDA Pay Revision
Committee, RVNL constituted a Romuneration
Committee on 11.09.2009 comprising of Mr.
M. S, Khan, former AM (Budget)/Rallway Board
& (part-time) (official) Director {appointed
against the vacancies o' independent
directors} as Chairman of the Committee, Mr.
R. P. Gupta, former Adviser (Works), Rallway
Board & (part-time) {official) Director and
SmL Gita Mishra, Director (Personne), RVNL
as members, On appointment of Me RN, Aga
as Independent Director on the Board of RYNL
wel 17.02.2010 and superannuation of Mr.
M.5. Khan and Mr, R.P. Gupta, the
Remuneration Committee was reconstituted

with Status

Name of Member

Attendance

Mr. M.S.Khan as 1 1
{Charkman

Membey

Mr. R. P. Gupta as 1 1

Membey

Smt. Gita Mishraas | 1 1

d

Retaiis of remungration of 38 the Direciors;

The Functiona! Directors appointed on the Board of RVNL
by President of India through Ministry of Railways draw
remuneration under Industrial Dearness Allowance (IDA)
pattern of pay scales and as per the terms and conditions
issued by Government of India from time to time for RVNL
being a wholly owned Government Company under
Companies Act,

Details of Remuneration pald to Functional Directors of the
Company for tha year 2009-10 are mentioned below:




—Anauol Report 2005-2010 ﬁkaﬂ\/ﬂtzsNipm Limited

S.No | Name of Director Salary Arrears Perquisites/ | Bonus/ Retireme | Total
Benefits Commission/ nt
Ex-gratia/ benefits
Performance
Linked benefits
1 Mr. 5.C Agnihotri 1008261 | 764,680 | 85,067 1,15,031 1,19.362 | 20,92,401
(Director/Projects
upto 27.01.2010 (FN)
& Managing Director
w.e.f 27.01.2010 (AN)
2 Mr. Harish Chandra, 1032838 | 946,960 | 431,815 1,19,654 2,20688 | 27,51.955
Director (Rnance)
3 Smt. Gita Mishra, 10,79.840 | 107,531 | 39,097 52,621 - 12,79,089
Director (Personnel)
4, Mr. D.C. Mitra 561,414 | 10,15,152 | 32,518 1,26,390 134,153 | 18,659,627
Managing Director
upto 30,09.2009
5. Mr.Ranjan K, Jain, 41519 | 879308 | 15157 1,17,030 1,22439 | 1549130
Director (Operations)
upto 31.08.2009

The part-time official (Government nominee) Directors on The part-time non-official (Independent) Directors on the
the Board of the Company do not draw any remuneration Board of the Company are paid a sitting fee of Rs.8 000/-per
from the Company. They only draw regular remuneration  meeting attended by them,

from the Government of India (Ministry of Railways in RVNL's

case) as Government officials, Details of payments towards sitting fee to Independent
Directors during 2009-10 are as menticned below
S.No | Name of Directors Sitting Fee Total
Board meeting | Audit Committee | Remuneration
meeting Committee meeting
1 Mr. RN.Aga 8000 - - 8000
Total 8000

6. General Body meetings:
The details relating to date, time, venue and the special

resolutions passed st the last three Annual General
Meetings of the Company are placed below:

— s
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Year AGM Date Time Venue Special Resolution
passed
2008.09 M 25,09.2009 1200 hrs Committee Room , Rall | No
Bhawan
2007-08 5" 19.09.2008 1200 hrs Committee Room , Rall | No
Bhawan
2006-07 " 21,09.2007 1500hrs Committee Room , Rall | To authorize Board
Bhawan of Directors for
further issue of
shares
the Board of Directors axcopt which are as
7. Disclosures per terms of appointment as contractual

[ The Company has not entered into any
significant related party transactions with the
Directors or their relatives (Disclosure made
by Directors individually pursuant to section
299 of Companies Act) having potential
interest with the Company at large.

Il.  The Company has not been imposed penalty
by any statutory authority owing to non-
compliance under laws, during the last three
years,

. The Company has complied with the
guldelines on Corporate Governance issued
by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), In
accordance with the guidelines, RVNL has
formulated a Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics for its Board Members and Senlor
Management Personnel, which has been
displayed on the website of the Company.
RVNL has been including a Report on
Corporate Governance and Management
Discussion and Analysis Report in its
Directors' Report since 2007-08. The
compliance of these Guidelines was also
reflected in the Chairman's speech delivered
at the last Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

V. The Company has received Presidential
Directive from Ministry of Railways on 17th
July, 2009 for Implementation of
recommendations of 2nd IDA Pay Committee
during the financial year 2009-10.

V. Al items of expenditure debited in the books
of Accounts of RVNL are for the purpose of
project execution entrusted to AVNL and are
related 1o project expenditure.

VI. There are no personal expenses Incurred for

obligations.
Vil Details of Administrative and office expenses

~The administrative expenses as a percentage
of total expenses have increased from 4,38%
In 2008-09 to 4,58% in 2009-10. The increase
wis mainly a result of the obligations arising
out of implementation of Second Pay
Committee Recommendations for employees
under IDA.

8. Means of Communication

The audited annual financial results and Annual Report are
displayed on RVNL's website, weancynlarg, Tenders of
various departments, detalls of tenders/contracts awarded,
Physical and Financial Plan of RVNL alongwith other official
news roleases are also uploaded on the website of RVNL,
The information uploaded on the website of RVNL is updated
form time to time according to the information provided,
A Hindi Version of the website is also available.

9. Audit Qualifications:

The Company has been putting all the efforts towards
ensuring a regime of unqualified financial statements and
there have been no significant qualifications.

10, Training of Board Members

RVNL takes initiatives to train its Board members about
RVNL's profile, business parameters, otc. All the redevant
issues and significant developments refated to the working
of AVNL are imparted to part-time Directors on the Board
of RVNL {(official) and [non-official), as the case may be)
by the management of RVNL from time to time. The documents
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related to the Company including Annual Reports,
Memorandum and Articles of Association, MoU between
RVNL and Ministry of Rallways etc are provided to them as
per requiremaent,

11. Whistie Blower Policy

RVNL being a Government Company under Ministry of
Railways is covered under Chief Vigilance Commission
(CVC), Therefore, as per CVC guidelines, a mechanism has
been established in the Company for all its employees and
clients to report about any unethical behavior, actual or
suspected fraud to the CVO or the Managing Director
directly. No employee has been denied access to the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors.

12. Code Of Business Conduct And Ethics

As per the guidelines on Corporate Governance released by
Department of Public Enterprises, after approval of the

ﬁm Vikas Nigam Limited

Board of Directors of RVNL, the Company has laid down its
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics along with RVNL's Key
Values for the Board Members and Senior Managemant
Personnel. The Code of Conduct Is also posted on the website

of the Company, wew.cvnl.ore,

The Compliance of the Code of Conduct has been affirmed
on the basis of confirmation received from all the Board
members and senlor management personnel for the
financial year 2009-10. A dedlaration to this effect, duly
signed by the Managing Director is placed at
JAonsxyre “A-L- and forms part of this report.

13. Compliance Certificate

Certificate obtained from a Practicing Company Secretary
regarding compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance in accordance with the guidelines issued by
Department of Public Enterprises has been included in the
Annual Report.
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Annexure-‘A-1'
Declaration by Managing Director regarding compliance with the Code of Conduct by Board Members and Senior Management
for the Financial Year 2009-10

1, S.C.Agnihotri, Managing Director, Rall Vikas Nigam Limited, do hereby decdlare that all the members of the Board of Directors
and the Senior Management team of the Company have affirmed their compliance of the code of conduct and key values
of the Company during 2009-10,

Sd-
Place: New Delhi {S.C. Agnihotri)
Date: 14.07,2010 Managing Director

S | e Designation & | Gross Quakfications Date of Tota Ao Lt
o Nty of Remunes pSon commencement of | Gaperience employrment
Dutles employment in
RVNL
1 Me Harish|  Director 27,51,955 BS5c, LLB, PG 11032005 30 8 GOWFRnance),
Chandra (Finance) Diploma In CONCOR
Public
Administration
2 | MeDC Managng 1869627 BE(OW) 0507 2006 15 &0 Inchan Ra ways
MTa Dérector
upto
30.09,2009
3 | MeRarjan| Director 15,459,130 BE (Electronies) 30.12 2004 n 58 Inchan Ra bviys
K. lain (Oper atlons)
upto
31.08, 2009
Note:
1. Gross Remuneration includes Salary, arrears, perguisites, performance linked b fits and retir benefits.

2, Mt Harish Chandra is on regular employment while Mr. Mitra and Mr. Jain were on deputation form Indian Raflways
3. None of the mentioned above holds any equity share in the company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Industry Structure and Development:

Due to their cost efficiency, optimization of land use and
environment friendly construction and operations, the role
of the Rallways (s becoming Increasingly important to
provide infrastructure support for industrial growth and
other segments of economy, particularly in developing
economies. India is the second fastest growing economy
in the world and the requirement for additional transport
Iinfrastructure will have to be largely met by the Railway
system to ensure sustained growth. In order to meet the
objective of creation of adequate transport capacity, to
handle the projected growth in the medium and long term
of both passenger and freight traffic and to remove
bottlenecks in the existing system, an outlay of Rs.2,51,000
crore has been provided in the Eleventh Five Year Pan. Out
of this amount, Rs 75,000 crore will have to be mobilized
from extra budgetary resources,

It s in this background that RVNL has the opportunity of
playing a critical role in the development of Railway
Infrastructure (n the country. Over the years it has gained
vast experience in implementation of projects on a fast track
basis and has refined its tendering and project management
processes. RVNL will now have to move towards increasing
Its capacity to take on additional projects and ensuring a
quantum jump in the level of the turnover of the Company
which has been Increasing only marginally over the last few
years,

In order to mobilize non-budgetary resources, Indian
Rallways will require efficient models of project
formulation, appraisal and execution, for which RVNL is
fully equipped, The Public Private Partnership (PPP)
environment on Indian Railways is still in the development
stage and RVNL is the only organization in the Railways
which has successfully implemented PPP Projects, Thus the
business opportunities for RVNL for project execution and
resource mobilization through PPP are signficant and RVNL
is gearing up to meet the chalienges ahead. New models
of PPP are being explored by RVNL to cover the different
nature of Railway infrastructure projects.

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL) - A Synopsis

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited was created in 2003 under the
National Rail Vikas Yojana as a Special Purpose Vehicle to
implement railway projects wz. gauge conversion, new line,
doubling or third line through budgetary and non-budgetary
resources to remove capacity bottienecks on the Indian
Railways network, particularty on the Golden Quadrilateral
and Diagonals; and to facilitate port connectivity and
multimodal corridors to the hinterland on a fast track basis

by awarding composite EPC contracts.  RVNL is a Schedule-
A company under Ministry of Rallways and It has been
consistently progressing on the path of growth with a steady
increase in turnover and profits. In fact, the Company has
been earning profits from the second year of its
incorporation itself

RVNL |4 an umbrelia Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), which

undertakes project developmaent and implementation and
has been mandated to undertake resource mobilization
directly or by creation of Project Specific SPVs or any other
financing structure, appropriate for different projects.
Besides rallway projects, RVNL is now also involved in a
project for setting up a private freight terminal and is
addressing Issues of revenue sharing and terms of the
concession, RVNL s also involved in strengthening the
policy and regulatory framework of PPPs In the Rallway
Sector.

Strengths

RVNL is the first major Initiative by Ministry of Rallways
for creating rail transport capacity ahead of demand on a
commercial format. RYNL has successfully completed over
20 projects which have been handed over to the Rafways,
Your Company is the only organization in Indian Radways,
which has developed and successfully implemented a
Private Public Partnership (PPP) mode! for impiementation
of infrastructure projects in the rail sector. RVNL has the
requisite skills and experience to implement projects on
international contracting norms following ADB procedures
and ensuring Resettiement and Rehabiitation of Project
Affected Persons displaced by land acquisition. RVNL has
introduced large scale mechanization in all aspects of
construction to achieve high quality output and has
adopted the latest technology in civil canstruction, welding,
signaling and elactric traction. The Company has a sound
and robust financial management system, which allows for
effective monitoring and control.

Weaknesses

RVNL has not been notified as a Rallway Administration and
therefore does not have the authority to approve drawings,
designs etc. Therefore, its performance often gets impaired
on account of delays In obtaining the necessary approvals,
The Company aiso faces a shortage of trained manpower
in project development. A major part of the workforce of
RVNL is drawn on deputation from Railways and due to the
constraints of technical manpower in the Raiways, RVNL
is not able to employ adequate staff for filling up vacancies,
Another ares of weakness is the fact that although it s a
part of mandate of RVNL, the Company has not been

| com—
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permitted to approach the market for raising funds for
Iimplementation of projects,

Opportunities

RVNL can play a pivotal role in assisting the Indlan Railways
in achieving the objectives of the Eleventh Five Year Pan
(2007-2012) of Increasing transport capacity and ralsing
extra budgetary resources. This will give RVNL the
opporiunity to prove itself as a leader in the implementation
of Railway projects in a fast track mode while ensuring
quality and cost control. Projects executed by RVNL have
been appreciated by stakeholders and as a consequence,
a number of additional projects have recently been
transferred to RVNL for execution and various projects are
in the pipe line. RVNL has been recently entrusted with the
work of implementation of projects for Kolkata Metro, This
would give RVNL the opportunity to develop expertise for
implementation of metro projects, which are spread across
the country.

With its experience of PPP projects, RVNL can develop
alternate models for impiementation of different types of
rail Infrastructure projects in PPP mode In an efficient and
timely manner, RVNL, being a company having developed
expertise In providing End to End solutions for
Infrastructure projects, has large opportunities to obtain
business from the railways as well as other players in the
infrastructure sector,

Threats

RVNL has been executing a number of projects which require
a considerable extent of investment, For execution of these
projects, availability of funds is the foremost requirement,
for which RVNL is largely dependent on the Ministry of
Raillways. This over-dependence for sourcing of funds for
implementation of projects may create a financial crisis at
any time and may prove detrimental in the long term for
the exacution of projects. Streamlining the process of land
acquisition is another area of concern for project execution,
a5, unless land Is acquired, the project itself cannot take
oft,

Competing rallway construction facilities may pose a threat
to the workload of RVNL in the long term. Although RVNL is
the sole entity created by Ministry of Railways for
implementing infrastructure projects through private
particpation, Indian Rallways does not have a declared
Public Private Partnership (PPP) policy or model Concession
Agreemant in the public domain, This delays the acceptance
of a particular PPP model for project implementation, which
can seriously affect the business opportunities of RVNL.

Strategies

The Company Is taking initiatives for ensuring cost control
and timely delivery of projects without any compromise on
quality to emerge as 3 leader in the execution and delivery
of rail infrastructure projects on fast track basis, To ensure
assured availability of funds to meet this objective, RVNL
has requested Ministry of Rallways that it may be permitted
to independently raise funds from the market as provided
for in its mandate. RVNL is also In the process of developing
a strategy on the Issue of land acquisition, In consultation
with the Ministry of Rallways,

An appropriate recruitment and training programme |5 being
designed to develop compatent, suitably skilled and
qualified manpower, Efforts are also being made to transfer
skills and best practices from other infrastructure sectors
and retraining in acquiring skills related to execution of
rallway projects.

Operational and Financial Performance

During the year 2009-10, the Company completed nine
projects/part of projects of approximate length of 391 km,
While achieving a turnover of Rs.1749.08 crore the
administrative expenses as a percentage of total expenses
in 2009-10 has been restricted to 4.58% against 6.43% to
over 13% for different departments provided for in Railway
construction projects. The profit after tax Increased from
Rs. 20.83 crore n 2007-08B to Rs. 51.90 crore In the current
year, The surplus of RVNL at the end of the year 2010 stands
at Rs,106.76 crore,

RVNL has formed five Joint Venture SPVs for implementation
and execution of projects.  Angul Sukinda Rallway Limitad,
the latest SPV of RVNL, has become operational with the
signing of Shareholders Agreement. The other Joint Venture
SPVs of RVNL namely Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company
Limited, Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited and
Bharuch Dahej Rallway Company Limited, set up for
implementation of port connectivity projects have become
fully operational during the year. While 8haruch Dahej
Rallway Company Limited has achieved financial dosure
for execution of its project other SPVs are also in process
of completion of formalities for this purpose. In addition,
Kutch Raitway Company Limited, the first Joint Venture SPV,
continued to show excellent operational results and
declared a dividend of Rs. 6 crore for the year 2008-09,

Outlook

As per the MoU between RVNL and Ministry of Railways,
RVNL Is committed to achieve 44 kms of Gauge Conversion,
233 kms of Doubling and 142 kms of Rallway Electrification
during the year 2010-11. The Company is expected to incur
a financial expenditure of around Rs, 1250 crores for

| e |
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execution of projects in 2010-2011. In addition, RVNL will
be taking up implementation of Metro workshop and New
Line projects which have recently been transferred to RVNL.
The Mission, Vision and Objectives of the Company as per
the Mol are as mentioned below:

Mission:

Creating state of Art rail transport capacity to meet growing
demand.

Vision:
To emorge as the most officient rail infrastructure provider

with sound financial base and global construction practices
for timely completion of projects.

Qbiectives;

a. To undertake and execute successfully project
development financing and implementation of
projects relating to “Strengthening of Golden Quad-
rilateral, Port and Hinterland connectivity”.and
other bankable projects under NRVY and specifi-
cally assigned to it by the Ministry of Railways;

b. To mobilize financial and human resources for
project implementation;

c. Timely execution of projects,

d. To maintain a cost effective organzational set up;

e. To encourage public private participation in rall
refated projects managed by RVNL,

f.  To be an infrastructure Project Management
Company committed to sustainable development
and environment friendly construction of rall related
projects in the country,

g. Toacquire, purchase, license, concession or assign
rall infrastructure assets including contractual rights
and obligations with the approval of MOR
whenever required.

Concerns

The main concern being faced by RVNL in the
implomentation of projects is the risk of cost increase,
mainly on account of Increase in cost of inputs, site
conditions and the requirements presented by users, i.e, the

ﬁmwm Nigam Limited

Zonal Raiways which were not envisaged in the original
scope of work, This affects both the bankability of the
project and the credibility of RVNL for the speedy
implemaentation of projects within the anticipated cost, The
execution of projects, which involve linking with the present
rail system in the proximity of running lines, often involve
operational difficuities which requires immense efforts of
coordination,

Internal control systems

As the main activity of RVNL is the execution of projects,
the Company has put in place an effective internal control
system for monitoring the Implementation of projects
including periodic review of physical and financial
progress, evaluation of efficlency of cost control measures
based on inputs of both the Technical and Finance
Departments.

The Finance and Accounts Department also conducts
reviews of the progress and nature of expenditure and
submits reports thereon to Management, Budgetary Reviews
are also conducted. A system of internal audit by an
external firm ensures the effectivity of control systems and
also submission of comments on the appropriatenass of
incurrence of expenditure and their accountal by the
Company. The reports of the internal auditor are
periodically reviewed by Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors and implementation of recommendations are
manitored,

Human Resource Development and Industrial
Relations

The Human Resource strategy of Rall Vikas Nigam Uimited
aims at enhancing the capabilities of the organization in
acquiring, developing, motivating and retaining its human
resources in an environment in which team work and
cooperation among the employees contributes to the growth
and well being of the individuals as well as the organization
as a whole.

To strengthen its position, the Company has initiated the
formation of its own permanent cadre through an
Absorption Policy alongwith a Recrultment & Promotion
Policy as approved by the Board of Directors of RVNL.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As per directions of Department of Public Enterprises, RVNL
has formulated a policy on Corporate Social Responsibllity
which has been approved by the Board of Directors of RVNL,
The initial focus areas of RVNL for CSR are Education and
Health. As per the policy, the Company will have a two tier
system of Committees at Corporate and PIU level for
efficient impiementation of CSR activities.

| com—
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ADDENDUM TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

(Management Replies to Comments in Auditors’ Report)

S. No.

Reference to Auditors’
Main Report Para No.

Management Reply

Para vi(a)

In terms of Railway Board's orders certain projects which were
already under implementation were transferred to RVNL for
only the balance scope of work. Accordingly, expenditure
Incurred before transfer |.e. March 2003 is not required to be
taken into Accounts by RVNL.

Para vi(b)

As per the letter of Ministry of Rallways dated 24.4.2006 No.
2004/W-1/RVNL/15, “It has been decided that after physical
completion of a project by RVNL, the asset should be straight
away transferred to the concerned Zonal Railway who will add
the value of the created asset in their block account.” RVNL has
approached Railway Board to issue necessary Instructions as to
the modalities to be followed for transfer of projects to the
Zonal Railways.

New Delhi

Date: 27.07.2010

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
(S.C. Agnihotri) (Harish Chandra)
Managing Director Director/Finance
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VINOD KUMAR & ASSOCIATES Annexure-C

COMPANY SECRETARIES

M.COM, FCS, LLB

343, Gall No.11, Near Dal Mill, Ajay Park, Naya Bazar, Najafgarh, New Delhi-110043
CELL NO.9212477250,8800497844, 09215377250

vkaneja2001 @gmail.com, vkaneja2001 @yahoo.com, csvinod @in.com
Certificate of Compliance

With the conditions of Corporate Governance in accordance with Guidelines on
Corporate Governance issued by Department of Public Enterprises

To

The Members of

RAIL VIKAS NIGAM LIMITED
New Delhd

1. The Certificate is In respect of the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as issued by Department of
Public Enterprises on 14" May 2010, by RAIL VIKAS NIGAM LIMITED, a Government Company under section 617 of the
Companies Act, 1956, for the year ended 31st March, 2010, as stipulated in the Company's code on corporate
governance

2. We have studied the Report on Corporate Governance of the said Company as approved by its Board of Directors. We
have also examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company and furnished to us for our
review in this regard. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance |s the responsibility of the management,
Our examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion
on the financial statement of the Company.

3. Wecomment that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

4. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and on the basis of our review and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the requirements of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in Company's code of corporate governance in Ml respects excopt:

(1) Appointment of Independent Directors on the Board of RVNL and consequent composition of
Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.

FOR VINOD KUMAR & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Sd/-

VINOD KUMAR

CP.5740

— [
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31st, 2010
Tch As at March 31, As at March 31,
2010 2009
Rupees Rupees Rupees Kupees

TOURCTS OF FUNDS
Shareholders' Funds

Share Capital 1 2085,02,01,000 2085,02,01,000

Reserves and Surplus 2 106,76,22,870 66,55,50,547
Loan Funds

Unsecured Loans 3 5216.06,06,008 3910,00,00.000
Fixed Assets

Gross Block 10.89,19, 628 9,84 86,505

Less: Depreciation/amortization to-date 8.17,44,53 6,48,15,508

Net Block “ 2,71,75.09% 3,36,70,997
Investments s 333,27,50,000 295.86,76,473
Deforred Tax Asset 1,17,07,16% 1,00,01,297
Current Assets, Loans and Advances

Projoct Work-in-Progress 6 6395.32,27,719 5046,14.21.935%

Add: Advances for Project Expenditore 320,64.85.330 4153903374

Cash and Bank Balances ? 618,12,83970 426,47 92,289

Sundry Debtors L] 79,53 .89 949 478580443

Loans and Advances L] 4216751527 334,03,24,264
Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions

Labilities 10 718,64 31,108 463.80.46,262

Provisions 11 35,99,10,768 45 66,37 886
Not Current Assets 7080,67,97.619°  5760,83,38,160
Miscellaneous Expenditure 12 50,64,620
(To the extent nat written off or adjusted)
Significant Accounting Policies 17 e —— R ——
Notes to the Accounts 13
This is the Balance Sheet referred 1o in our The schedules referred to above form an integral
report of even date part of the Balance Sheet
Bhushan Bensal Jain Associates ON BENALF OF THE BOARD
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.;003884N

Sd/- Sd/- Sa/- Sd/-

CA Ravi Bhardwa) S.CAgnihotrl Harish Chandra Suman Kalrs
Partner Managing Director Director Finance Company Secretary
M No. 80656

Flace | New Delh|
Date 1 29.06.2010
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PROAT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED IMARCH 31st, 2010

Sch Currert Year Previows Year
Rupees Rupess Rupees Rupees

INCOIVE
Tumover
- Fromaonstruction work in progress (project acthity) 3 174907398 16541648 791
Interest Income
- Barks - Gross (TS deducted Rs 2,58 86,207 Previous Year M 780654 23,3407 006
Rs. 500,44 639)
- Others - Gross (TDS deckuicted Rs 43.53,356 Previaus Yesr 43533565 101016441
Rs.2,2890,325)
- Orhers on Mobilizations Advance 107235241 63745657
Terder Prooesing Fees 1608000 35,0098
Other income 1,02,04006 508736

T v T RIAR
Less : Transfarmed to inddental Expenditure duning 11,9048 267 - 67754452
construction period - Schedule - 6
Dividend Received From Kutch Railway Company Linmited 30000000

T U088 T 1685,0,72.28

BEEPENDITURE:
Direct experses on construction and project. related activty n 189038 22,68 1619,50,37.62
GROSS PROAIT 0071280 681034634
INDIRECT EPENDITURE
Errployess’ Resmuneration and Berefits 15 3833179 34526789
Adminstrative Experces 16 8328835 61416307
Depredation 19594428 26807124

12891606 6@ 1955528 7251831

SOB4620 S0,64,620

BR8N R, H,547

674883813 57,23,75,087
1567,15251 17,0506272
(L5868 (4916659
807,107 (1516276

1558 1640 164073337
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Profit After Tax

Ackt: Balance bytd from previous year
Profit Available for Appropriation
Less: Transfer 10 General Reserve
Profit Avaitable for Distribution

Proposad Divioend

Additional Tax on Dividend
Surplus Profit camed forward during the year to Reserve &

Surphus

BASIC E°S / DILUTED EPS

Significant accounting policies

Notes to the accounts

This is the profit & Loss Account referred to in our report of

even date

Bhushan Bensal laln Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.-003884N

Sqi/-
CA Ravi Bhardwaj
Partner

M. No, 80656
Place : New Delhi
Date :29.06.2010

Managing Director

5190,67,323
53,55,50,547

8,00,00,000
10,00,00,000
1,69,95,000

The schedules referred to abowe form an integral part

of the Profit & Loss Accourt
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

/-

Harish Chandra
Director Firance

Surman Kalra
Company Secretary
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CASHROWSTATEVENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MPRCH 3ist, 2000

SN | 200200 25400
[ AVOLUNITRS) AVOUNTIS) | AVOUNITS) | AVOUNITTS) |
1
674883813 59,27,758
67,0273 725183
A47,8065M 23407, 008
oo .
neA6al 64,6
S088M64) 351684512
13,737,625 906 159600
17,0868,
K72, MBS
q, 4915
-0 7R EN 0N AR,
1581540 154460522

NBMEHEE  NBIGHE  MMIVE] 4686

W7RGESM BN,
3o -

75965 17759965 25381775 2,381,709

153,00

- LR K473
166637, 1&537&| 189N 77,527 M8 9477524
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|Net Increasey/{Decrease) in cosh 8 cosh equivdlert
(AsBrC)

Cash & Cash equivant at the begirning of the year

Cash & Cash equivallont at the dosing of the yoar

Cash and Cash cquinalents comprise
Caehand Chexpes i Hund 690,
Bikance with Schedbded Barks

OnCumesnt Accourt
Onterm Deposit Account

1913(!1.31] 167977,122

406,57,92.280) 4100815168

613128397 68792,

The sbove Cash flowstaterent has boen propared under the indirect method setaat in 463 issued by The institute of Charterod Accourtants of India,

- Pravicus year's figures have boen regrouped and resrranged, wherover necessary,

This Is the Cash Flow Staterment refierred 10 in our repont of even dite.

Bhushen Bensal Jain Assodiates

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sd- - -
SCAgnhoti  HarishChardra Sumen Kala
Marsging Drector - Diector finance. Company Seoretary
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Schedules attached to and forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2010
As at March 31, As at March

2010 31, 2009
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

SCHEDULE 1

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized Capital

3,00,00,00,000 (previous year 3,00,00,00,000) Equity Shares 3000,00,00,000 3000,00,00,000

of Rs 10/ each

Issund, Subscribed and Paid up Capital

2,05,76,70,000 (Pravious year 2,05, 76,70,000) Equity Shares 2057,67,00,000 2057,67,00,000

of Rs 10/- each fully paid up

2,73,50,100 (Provious year 2,73,50,100) Equity Shares of Rs. 27,35,01,000 27,35,01,000

10/- each fully paid msued for consideration other than cash
T 2085,02,01,000 " 2085,02,01,000
 E——— CEE—

SCHEDULE 2

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

General Reserve

s Per last Balance Sheet 13,00,00,000 5,00,00,000

Addition during the year £,00,00,000 21,00,00,000 8,00,00000  13,00,00,000

Profit & Loss Account

A< Per last Balance Sheet 53,55,50,547 30,08,31,982

Profit for the yesr 3220,72323 BS,76,22870 234718565 535550547
T 106,96,22,870 T 66,55,50,587
———————— ——————

SCHEDULE 3

UNSECURED LOANS

Other Loans and Advances

From IRFC

Opening Balance 1501,00,00,000 1208,00,00,000

Add: Additions During the Year 370,00,00,000 293,00,00,000

Less: Repayment During the Year 431666666 187,83 33334 1501,00,00,000

From MOR

Project Advance Capital 1127,00,00,000 642,00,00,000

Project Advance Rec. From MOR 2228,00,00,000 1767,00,00,000

Advance Received from MOR for IRFC Loan Repayment 4322,72674  3398,22,72674 2409,00,00,000
T 5226,06,06,008 ~3910,00,00,000

IEI—E
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Schedules attached to and forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2010

As 3t Mareh
31, 2010

As at March
31, 2009

Rup Rup

SCHEDULE 5

INVESTMENTS

Long Term Trade Investment - unquoted at cost
Fully Paid Equity Shares in Incorporated Joint
Ventures

10,00,00,000 {Previous Year - 10,00,00,000) Equity
Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid - Equity In Xutch
Rallway Company Limited

25,000 [Previous Year - 25,000) Equity Shares of Rs.
10 each fully paid - Equity in Haridaspur Paradip
Rallway Company Limited

25,000 (Previous Year - 25,000) Equity Shares of Rs.
10 each fully paid - Equity in Knshnapatnam Railway
Company Limited

2,50,00,000 (Previous Year - 25,000} Equity Shares of
As. 10 each fully paid - Equity in 8haruch Dahej
Railway Company Limited

25,000 (Previous Year - Ni) Equity Shares of Rs. 10
each fully paid - Equity in Angul Sukinda Rallway
Limated

Share Application Money Pending Allotment*:
-Bharuch Dahej Raitway Company Limited
Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited
-Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited
-Angu Sukinda Railway Limited

* Amount committed towards share money calls to be
recesved: Rs. 194 925 crores (Previous Year Rs, 43.66
crores

52,50,00,000
133,20,00,000

22,50,00,000

100,00,00,000

2,50,000

2,50,000

25,00,00,000

2,50,000

19,09,26,473
43,50,00,000
133,20,00,000

208,20,00,000 .

100,00,00,000

2,50,000

2,50,000

2,50,000

195,79,26 A73




Profit & Loss Account

Apportioned to Projects in the ratio of spending
on individual projects to project expenditure
Others

Expenditure Pending Allocation

Net Project Execution Income

Less: Credit from Release Material
Less: to date Expenditure incurred on SPVs
transferred to Schedule 14

170,85,14,117

189,55,31,144

61,39,17,167

6853,27,31,707
16,25,058
AS7,78,78,930

6395,32,27,719
g
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Schedules attached to and forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2010
As 81 March As at March
31, 2010 31, 2008
Rupees Rupees Rup Rup
SCHEDULE 6
PROJECT WORK IN PROGRESS
Civil Works
Bndges 972,36,37 626 791,24,27,18%
Construction Stores at site 141,62,46,886 263,25,30,572
Preliminary Project Expenditure 34,16,13,620 31,97,98,216
Equipments Plants and Machinery 74,00,48,380 48,83,68,947
Foot Over Brdge 16,59,11,192 10,23,71,600
Formation 464,40,96,755 332,89,81,433
Land 151,11,84,407 79,37,01,584
Permanent Way 25967,56,18,113 2280,36,94,053
Schedule of Day Works Rate 54,53,788 17,23,339
Shifting of Overhead / Underground Crossing 5,65,33.8% 4,33,71,5%
Station Buildings 290,22,82,370 5118,26,26,967 191,3457,210 4034,08,25,673
S & T Works
Detail Design & Engineering 4,83,75,187 3,55,96,365
Signaling Arrangement 203,20,67,029 189,49,15,260
Telecommunication Arrangement 27,15,86,035 26,90,41,608
Signaling & Telecom Works A18,91,28, 854 654,1157,105 267,46,19,267 487 41,72 500
Electrical Works
Electrification of Building 176,69,73,391 128,32,10,605
Sub-station and Other Equipment 52,00,48,4389 37,83,68.909
Overhead Electric Equipment 430,39,63,327 659,09,85,207 265,46,04, 792 A31 61,84 306
Incldental Expenditure During Construction
Period
Opening Balance 125,00,97,030 74,01,23,7%0
Add: Transferred from
Employees’ Remuneration and Benefits 22,12,20,292 22,88,75,390
(Schedule 15)
Administrative Expenses [Schedule 16) 34,33,53,367 32,65,86,711
Depreciation (Prafit & Loss Account) 1,28,91,696 1,95,55,293
Tax Expenses (Profit & Loss Account) - 27,10,298
182,75,62,384 8,51,
Less: Income earned - transferred from 11,90,48,267 6,77,54,452

125,00,97,030

149,01,00,024
35,65,64,168
5262,79,43,701
14,086,861
216,51,12,902

|

5046,14,21,938
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Schedules attached to and forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2010

As at March As at March
31, 2010 31, 2000
Rupees Rupees
SCHEDULE 7
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
1. Cash balances
Cash and cheques in hand 200,000 15,00,722
Imprest accounts 4,90,106 3,31,591
TOTAL (A) 6,590,106 18,32,313
2. Balance with scheduled banks e ——————=
On Current Account 65,02,05,004 61,69,59,976
On Fixed Deposit 553,03,88,860 365,00,00,000
TOTAL (8) _61805,93,864 4266959976
TOTAL (A)+ (B) 618,12,83,970 426,87,92,289
——————————>r
SCHEDULE 8
SUNDRY DEBTORS (SPVs)
More than six months - .
Others 79:53:89,949 47:85:%443
» »
SCHEDULE 9
LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for
value to be received
Recoverable from Ministry of Railways (Interest &
processing fee) 400,53,59,755 296,47,98 331
Interest accrued on Fixed Deposits and Mobilization
Advances 3,27,82,136 2,78,42,048
Security Deposit 2,60,32.571 2,44,27,922
Advance Tax and Tax deducted at source 12,37,85,341 25,99,80,052
Others 2,87,91,724 6,32,75,911
421,67,51,527 334,03,24,264
Advances include amounts due by
(i} Directors of the Company 9371

[Maximum due during the year Rs. 9,371 (Previous Year Rs 56,567))

E—E
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Schedules attached to and forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2010

As at March As 8t March
31, 2010 31, 2000
Rupeas Rupees Rupeses Rupees
SCHEDULE 10
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors
Micro ,Small & Medium Enterprises . .
Others 198,82,07,977 77,00,24,043
Earnest Money and Security Deposit 39,92,65,877 28,50,68,277
Other Liabilities 19,16,17,342 13,15,16,741
Book Overdraft** 28,25,35,068 76,80,224
Advance recelved from Customers against 32,94,41,089 48 89 58 646
Deposit Work (others)
Interest Accrued but not Due on Loans
Opening Balance 295,47,58,331 163,85,73,544
Add: Additions During the Year 164,82, 88,750 131,62,24,787
Less: Repayment During the Year 60,77,27.326 399,53,59,755 - 2954758331
718,64,31,108 463,80,46,262
**Balance in current accounts linked with time deposits
have resulted In book overdraft due 1o cheques issued
but not presented amounting to Rs, 28,30,88,685
{Previous year Rs. 59,87,72,001)
SCHEDULE 11
PROVISIONS
Provision for retirement benefits
Opening Balance 718,745 1,68,548
Add: Additions During the Year 5,94 344 5,50,197
Less: Written Back as per actuarial valuation ________ - 13,13,089 e 8 7,18,745
Provision for Tax
Opening Balance 28,50,94,648 11,53,38,461
Add: Additions Dur Ull'}ﬁ the Year 15,67,15,251 16,97,56,187
Less: Written Back/Utilization during the year  28,50,94,648 15,67,15,251 . 28,50,94 648
gividcnd B’.ly.b'. m 00,000 5,00,00,000
alance 3 U,
R Additions Buri the Year 10,00,00,000 £,00,00,000
Less: Written Back/Utilization during the year  8,00,00,000 10,00,00,000 5,00,00,000 8,00,00,000
Provision for Foreign Service Contribution
Opening Balance 559,23 511 1,33,72,949
Add: A dmons Durin  the Year 3,85,89916 4,84,93,032
Less: Written Back/Utilization during the year 4,40,91,610 5,04,21,817 42,470 5,59,23,511
Provision for PRP/PLI
Opening Balance 3,49,00,982
Add: Additions Dunn§ 2,65,00,000 3,49,00,982
Less: Written Back/U llizatton dum\g the year 99,40,371 5,14,60,611 . 3,49,00,982
35,59,10, 768 A5 65, 37,885

] =
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Schedules attached to and forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2010

As at Moarch As 8t March
31, 2010 31, 2000
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
SCHEDULE 12
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
Balance as per last Balance Sheet 50,64,620 1,01,29,240
Less: Written off during the year 50,64,620 50,64,620 50,64,620
. 50,64,620
—_— e —————

Schedules attached to and forming part of Profit and Loss Account for the year ended

March 31st, 2010
. for the year For the year
ended March ended March
3, 2010 31, 2009
Rupees Rupees
SCHEDULE 13
Turnover from Construction Work in Progress
(Project Activity)
- From Project under NRVY(MOR) 1098,03,94,612 1331,40,24,262
- From Project under Zonal Railway 251,14,11,169 65,74,56,323
- From Deposit Work - Project for SPV 263,63,60,899 98,15,05,879
- From Deposit Work - Project for Others 1%25:;7.128 158‘36:62:327
SCHEDULE 14
Direct expenses on construction and project
related activity
Direct Expenditure incurred on Projects (MOR) 1072,30,41,613 1318,22,02,240
Direct Expenditure incurred on Projects (Zonal Railway) 251,14,11,169 65,74,56,323
Direct Expenditure incurred on Deposit Work - Projects
(SPV) (refer Schedule 6) 241,27,66,028 91,74,34,207
Direct Expenditure incurred on Deposit Work -
Projects for Others 125,66,03,797 143,79,44,854
1690,38,22,507 /
————————

E—E
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Schedule attached to and forming part of Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31st, 2010
Expenditure Charged to Incidents Expend ture Tolal Expenses
Profit & Loss Account during Construction
For the year | For the year | For the year | For the year | For the year| For the year
ended March | ended March ended  |ended March|  ended  |ended March 31,
3,200 31,2000 | Marens, | 31,2009 | Marchar, 2009
Rupees Rupees 2010 Rupees 2010 Fupees
Bugees Rugees
SCHEDULE 15
Employees’ Remuneration & Benefits
Salaries and alowsncns 3gemm002  33030261| 208792 038| 21,94 40,593| 240 50070]  @m.27,705%]
[Contritution to Provcent and other tunds 2,37,379 79352] 1os1523]  534327] 1ssa90e 6,10.626)
Sl wetare 18,536,343  11.20180] 1078653 8900368 1260297 1,00,20,564]
380,531,788 3.45.26,709| 22.12.20.202] 22,00 75,350] 259552001  28.34,02.179]
SCHEDULE 16
Administrative Expenses
Pictessional consultancy tees 4650490 1817673] 16773997 9738477 21424487 1,15,56,150|
Prowct management Consullancy JI2,TI290| 2ORATROI|ITIA96.118] 17.57.00,716| 2057 31 412 20,1007 577
| Advertisernent and business promation 20,1252¢] 1632215] s925264] oe362] Tea77RE 85,268,777
[~ 12weling experaes 5041088  99188e3| 22023743 22545070| 2.70,05401 2.84,52013)
Canveyance expenses wo97300|  aso1 7| s resso| »ssossez| 42477008 334 07 818
Communicaton 2851332  1s9s187] @0.12508] seazese| 12485937 1,00,38,116)
Rent 1,60,68,105] 1,18,73088] 42108587 <12480z2] 58174002 531,18,721
Raxs & Taces 7,00,000 35,02 564 700,000 35,00 504
Repairs and mantonance - others 40,0143  26.73270] 18809458 1,01 .60588] 22800804 1,68 42887
Pantng and staonery 2027401| 1189868 e7.43800] sotsme1| 8771201 72.09510)
[Etircity 1r0eas2]  w2sesze]l m20an] sssan| re2eres 4779087
[Legal arid professions chesges 5,469,072 oa1100] amaazor] 1sr0p2r] 4as2ave 24,21 857
[Books and perodicals 2,67.950 17agsel  Tmaee]  TeesTa| 1049508 £.40,612
|Drecter stang teas 4,000 1,50 000 1,000 1,50,000]
Awtitor Remuneragon (Ineludng servee ta) |
- Audit Fees 20378 17800] 205343 12235000 235020 1,40,000|
- Out of pocket expances 13.750 96.250| 1,10,000
Othor Mattere 12,400 86,361 59,270
Macellanscus erpenses (includes Loss
on Foredgn Exchangs Fluchsation
LERE ) (ml”ku) and Loss 6,68 054 343 16,47 554 12577861 156728 16, 0a506]
on 530 of ey assets Re 17,727
(previous Year Re 13.731)
Puoe year oxpanses a1 613 5,35 842 2251381 37 40401 78.72.904 42,85 132
mil 6,14,15,307| 34,33,53,.367| 12,65,66,711/ 42,66 41,742 !J‘Ml’
| —
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Schedule 17

Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis and
under historical cost convention and in accordance with all
applicable accounting standards specified in Companles
(Accounting Standard Rules) 2006 including relevant
presentation requirements of the Companées Act, 1956. However,
cortain ascalation and other claims by customers, which are
not ascertainable /acknowledged, are not taken into account.

Management makes estimates and assumptions regarding
the amounts of income and expenses in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in the
preparation of the financial statements. The difference
between the actual results and estimates are recognized in
the period in which determined.

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Company
are given below,

1 Fixed Assets

(i} Fixed assets are stated at the cost of acquisition
inclusive of inward freight, duties and taxes and
ncidontal exporses related to acquisiion, The expenses
aiso include applicable borrowing cost If any.

(i) Intangible assots comprise of license fees, other
implementation cost for system software and ather
application software acquired for In-house use.
The costs are capitalized in the year in which the
relevant software is implemented for use,

Depreciation

(i} Depreciation on Individual assets acquired for Rs.
S000/- or less is provided at the rate of 100% on
pro-rata basis,

Depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis on the
straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets determined as follows:

23.75%
31.67%
19.00%

2

Furniture and Fixture
Computers

Office Equipments
{Excluding Mobile Phones)
Mobile Phones {up to 23.9.2009) 31.67%
(From 23.9.2009) A7.50%

{11} Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
period of lease from theyear In which such
improvements are capitalized.

ﬁmwm Nigam Limited

(iv)Capitalized software costs are amortized @ 23.33%
0n pro r&ta basis except where the estimated useful
life is less than three years,

Impairment of assets

All assets other than inventories, investments and
deferred tax asset are reviewed for Impalrment,
whenever events or changes In crcumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, Assets,
whose carrying amount value exceeds their recoverable
amount, are written down to the recoverable amount,

Long-term investments, including interests in
incorporated Jointly Controlled Entities (JCEs), are
carried at cost, after providing for any diminution in
value, If such diminution is of other than temporary
nature, Short-torm investments are carried at lower of
cost or market value. The determination of carrying
amount of such investments is done on the basis of
specific identification.

Inventories

Project Work-in-Progress is valued at the contract rates
and construction material at site is stated at cost,
Payments made to Zonal Railways for acquiring land
Induded in project Work-in-Progress is stated at cost,

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized based on the nature of activity,
when consideration can be reasonably measured and
there exists reasonable certainty of Its recovery,
Revenue from construction/project related activity is
recognized as follows:

(i) Projects related to Ministry of Raidways (MOR]:
Revenue from projoct execution |s determined by
adding aggregate cost plus margin agreed with MOR
and any subsequent clarification received in this
respect.

(11) Deposit works {cost plus contract} related to ICEs
(Jeintly Controlled Entities in the form of Special
Purpose Vehicles and others): Contract revenue is
determined by adding the aggregate cost plus
proportionate margin (Direction & General Charges)
based on fixed percentage as agreed with the
customer,

(iii) Claims are accounted as income in the yoar of
acceptance by client or evidence of acceptance
received.

| com—
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(iv) Interest on investment is accounted on accrual
basis, inclusive of related tax deducted at source.

(v) Other items of income are accounted as and when
the right to receive arises.

Employee Benefits
a) Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within
twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short torm employee benefits, Benefits such as
salaries, wages, and short- term compensated
absences, etc. are recognized in the period which the
employee renders the related service.

b) Post employment benefits

i Defined contribution plans: The Company
makes defined contribution to Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner in respect of
provident fund scheme and employee state
insurance scheme. The contribution paid/
payable under the schemes is recognized
during the period in which the employee
renders the refated service.

i, Defined benefit plans: Gratuity Is a post
emplayment defined benefit plan, The liability
recognized in the balance sheet is the present
value of the defined benelit obligation at the
balance sheet date less fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by an independent actuary
using projected unit credit (PUC) method,
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized
immediately in the Profit & Loss Account.

¢) Long Term Employee Benefits

The obligation for long-term emplayee benefits
such as long-term compensated absences, is
recognized In the same manner as In the case of
defined benefit plans as mentioned in (b) (i) above

d) Retirement benefits of the'staft on deputation’ have
been accounted for on the basis of the guidelines
of the Ministry of Rallways.

Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at
the exchange rate prevailing on the date of
transactions. Gains / Losses arising out of settlement
ore charged / credited to the profit and loss account.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalized as part of cost of such asset till

such time as the asset is ready for its intended use,
A quallfying asset is an asset that necessarlly requires
a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognized
8% an expense in the period in which they are incurred,

10. Taxes on Income

Tax on income for the current year is determined on
the basis of taxable income and tax credits computed
in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961, and based on the expected cutcome of the
assessment/appeals.

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences
between the accounting income and the taxable income
for the year and quantified using the tax rates and [aws
substantially enacted as on the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed depredation/
brought forward losses are recognized 1o the extent there
Is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which such doferred tax assets
can be realized.

Other deferred tax assets are recognized and carried
forward to the extent that there s a reasonable certainty
that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

11. Provisions and contingencies

The company creates a provision whaen there is present
obligation as a result of a past event that probably
requires an outflow of resources and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation, A
disclosure of a contingent labllity |s made where there
is a possible obligation that probably will not require
an outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate
of the obligation can not be made.

12, Miscellaneous Expenditure

Preliminary expenses are amortized over a period of
five years from the year of commencement of Business
operations,

13. Lease Rental

Lease rental In respect of operating lease Is charged
to project work in progress and administrative
expensas in the profit and loss account,

For and on behalf of the Board,

Sd/- Sd/ -Sd/-
S.CAgnihotri Harish Chandra Suman Kalra
Managing Director Director Finance Company Secretary
Place:New Dehi
Date :29.06 2010
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Schedule 18

Note to the Accounts
1 Inventories

Land cost included in Project Work in Progress
represents payments made to various Zonal
Railways for the purpose of acquisition of land.
The total payment made amounts to Rs. 151.12
crore (Previous year: Rs.79.31 crore)The land so
acquired is In the name of the Zonal Railway,

. The Company is executing projects transferred by

MOR under the MoU. In some of the projects,
initially transferred to the Company, work was
already in progress and some of the Zonal
Railways had incurred expenditure on those
profects prior to their transfer to the Company. The
expenditure made by the concerned Railways prior
to the formation of the Company has not been
taken Into account. The policy regarding Hability
of the Company for such expenditure, which took
place prior to formation of the Company, shall be
decided at the time of transfer of projects to the
Rallways.

In the opinion of the Management, the value of
current assets, loans and advances on realization
in the ordinary course of business, will not be less
than the value at which these have been stated in
the Balance Sheet.

2 Revenue

The Company has accounted for Income from
Project execution @ 2% (Previous Year @ 1%) on
the expenditure Incurred by it on MOR projects,
which are being directly implemented by the
Company as per the directions of MOR.
Accordingly, management fees amounting to Rs.
21.45 crore (Previous Year Rs. 13.18 crore) has
been recognized as income.

. In addition, from the financial year 2009-2010,

MOR has decided to allow an incentive of 0.5% for
the Company. This incentive shall be allowed to
RVNL based upon the grading awarded by the
Department of Public Enterprises every year.
Accordingly, RVNL would be eligible for the full
incentive of 0.5% If it achleves the grading of
“Excellont”, 0.4% incentive if it achieves grading of
“Very Good" and 0.3% incentive for the grading of
“Good". No incentive would be allowed |f the
grading is less than "Good”, The amount of
incentive has been calculated on the basis of the
latest grading of "Very Good" communicated by

ﬁmwm Nigam Limited

DPE on the annual expenditure incurred on
Railway projects by RVNL. Accordingly, an incentive
amounting to Rs. 4,29 crore (Previous Year Rs. Nil}
has been recognized as income.

I, Expenditure on work in progress against contracts
awarded by the Company is recognized on
completion of measurements and testing certified
by the Engineer,

Iv. Expenditure of execution of projects done by the
Zonal Railways on behalf of the Company on MOR
projects Is accounted for on the basis of statement
of a estimated expenditure received from respective
Zonal Railways and is adjusted allocation-wise as
and when the final expenditure statement is recerved,

v. Expenditure against advances given to various
agencies for execution of works on cost plus basis
as deposit works Is accounted for on the basis of
statement of estimated expenditure received from
tho concerned agency and is adjusted as and when
the final expenditure statement Is received.

3 Deposit Works (SPVs and others)

i.  Works being executed for SPVs and others are
treated as a deposit work.  The advance received
Is disclosed under Current Liabilities and the
amount recoverable on account of project
oxecution under Sundry Debtors,

Ii. The Company is executing projects for SPVs of the
Company and other parties as a deposit work
either directly or through ditferent Zonal Radways,
Project work in progress is shown under Profit &
Loss Account and the corresponding current assets
and liabilities in respect of such projects have
been recognized on the basis of expenditure
incurred plus D&G charges as agreed.

i, Costs incurred for Deposit Works:

Yaar ended | Yoar onded
Mareh 31, March 31,
2010 203
{Ru. in crore) p.a-g_
Costs ncuned for 0854 245
Deposit Waorks
Recogriad Pro/iions 3258 21 48
Cumelatrea amount o T 85 42801
couts Incurred and T »an
recognized PoftLoss
Advanoo rocoivod 32 4 £A 90
Gross Aot due trom T84 &r.ee
Cislomess

| com—



Anovol Report 2009 2010

ﬁ Rail Vikas Nigam Limited

As decided by MOR the Company has borrowed funds
aggregating to Rs. 1,827.83 croro (Previous year Rs
1501.00 crore) fram Indian Rallway Finance Corporation
(IRFC). The interest lability has been assessed at the rate
@5 advised by IRFC from time to time. For 2009-10, the
rate advised by IRFC is 8.73% (Previous Year 9.72%). MOR

has decided to boar full responsibility of the repay
of principal and cost of borrowing (interest) on the entire
sum of the borrowed funds, The interest accrued but
not due on the IRFC loan amount has been shown as
recoverable from MOR under Current Assets and the
interest payable amount under the Current Uabilities
in the Balance Sheet.

Funds received by the Company from Government of
India, MOR as equity capital are utllized for executing
projects of National Rail Vikas Yojra. After physical
completion of a project, the assets are to be transferred
to the concerned zonal rallway who would add the value
of assets in their block account. The modalities of
transfer of such assets are being worked out with the
Ministry of Railways.

The Company has not recelved any intimation from
“suppliers" regarding their status under the Micro,
Small and Medium enterprises Development Act, 2005
and hence disclosures, if any, relating to amounts
unpaid as at the year-end together with interest paid/
payable as required under the sald Act is not
ascortainable presently,

The value of projects commissioned / completed and
put to use by Railways up-to year ended 31st March
2010 amounted to Rs. 3,956.21 crore (Previous year
Rs. 1,862,77 crore), While sections have been opened
for traffic, some minor works may still be required and
financial adjustments are yet to be carried out. The
projects are treated as completed only after the work
has been completed in all respects and the completion
reports have been drawn after reconciliation and
finalization of the accounts. The adjustment for the
expenditure on completed projects shall be carried out
after finalization of the modalities for transfer of
completed projects to Zonal Rallways in consultation
with Ministry of Rallways.

The total cost of projects executed for MOR by the
Company is Rs. 6,395.32 crore (Previous Year Rs. 5,046,14
crore). Out of this Rs. 1,758.70 crore (Previous Year Rs.
1,507.55 crore) worth of execution has been done by
Zonal Railways on behalf of the Company,

During the year the Company has revised the
depreciation rates on moblle phones from 31.67% to
47.50% prospectively w.e.l. 23rd September 2009. The
additional depreciation charged in the books due to
change in the rate of depreciation Is Rs. 1.95 lac.

Expenditure in Foreign Currency
Yoar ended Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2010 (Rs) 2009 (Rs)
Travel xpensas 524,019 6,456,393
Project Management 34,47,387 18,50,886
Consultancy
Contingent liability in respect of claims not
acknowledged as debts by the Company:

Rs. 42,25,56,588 /- {Previous year Rs. 7,12,576/-)

Capital commitment towards share capital in
SPV's is Rs. 194.93 crore (Previous year Rs.43.66
crore)

Managerial Remuneration

Year Yoar

ended eondod
March 31, | March 31,

2010 2000

(Rs.) (Rs.)
Salary & alowances B89.45560 | 34.24 468
Provident Jind and other fund 5,96 642 231935

Includes Rs. 4441254 (Previous year Rs, 26,61 799)
for Directors who are on deputation from Ministry of
Railways.

Employee Benefit

(a) The majority of the officers/staff employed in RVNL
are on deputation from Indian Rallways. RVNL is
paying Foreign Service Contribution to the Indian
Railways towards retirement benafits.

(b} For RVNL employees
The disclosure required under Accounting Standard-

15 "Employees Benefit" in respect of defined benefit
plan is:

Gratuity Leave

Encashmont
mm.:onmlollm 281.1% 437 615
Interest Cost 23,193 36,103
Curront serice cost 1,080,585 250,130
Benall pad - (51 666)
Actumrial (Gany Loss on ctagabony (22,407} 1,50,307
Closing Balance ax on V02010 | 461,501 31,588

Gratuity Benefit is payable to employees on
retirement or resignation or death. The amount of
gratuity payable is based on past service and salary
at time of exit as per Payment of Gratuity act, 1972,

| e |
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There is a vesting period of 5 years on the benefit.

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS:
Method Of Valuation | Project Unit Credit Method
Discount Rate B.25%
Salary Escalation Rata | 5%
Retrement Aps 60 years
Withdrowal Rate I% ot younger ages and reducing
10 1% at cider ages according to
gracuated scole
Mortality rate LIC (1954-58) published tabia of
Mortalty rales
15. Income Tax ;

{a) Provision for Income tax has been calculated on
the interest income received / accrued and on D&G
charges levied on project execution for other
parties during the year.

(b) Breakup of deferred tax Assets into major components
of the respective balances is as under:

Opening i on Oating 44 on
Aprd 1, 2009 March 31, 2000
M) hs.)
Tes Amets due o 16001297 1,17.07,368
ference  between  tax
depreciation  and  book
| depeecistion

16. Earnings per Share:

The numerators and denominators used to calasate Basic

bj

<)
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: Harldaspur Paradip Railway
Company Umited
¢ Krishnapatnam Railway Company
Limnited
= Bharuch Dahej Railway Company
Limitad
- Angul Sukinda Railway Limited
Key Management Personnel

D.C. Mitra Managing Director (up to
30.08,2009)

5.C. Agnihotri Managing Director (from
27.01.2010 (A/N))

Harish Chandra  Director/Finance

Ranjan Kumar Jain Director/Operations (up to
31,08.2009)

Director/Projects (up to
27.01.2010 (F/N})

Geeta Mishra Director/Personnel

Enterprises in which Directors interest oxist:
Haridaspur Paradip Rallway Company Limited -
holding Directorship and are interested in Company.
Sh. Harish Chandra, DF/RVNL up to 16.12. 2009

Sh. Ranfan Kumar Jain, DO/RVNL wp to 31.08,2009
Sh. 5.C. Agnihotri, DP/RVNL from 07.09.2009 up to

S.C. Agnihotn

Earnings per Share are: 16.12.2009
200010 2000-00 d) Disciosure of transactions with related parties:

Proft Altriutatse 10 the 519067220 | 4088145848 (Rs.in crore)
wnarenodens (Rs ) (A}
Bass: average rumber of Equty | 208.55,20100 [ 208 50,20 300 PR oy
Snaree oststanding ot and of the
yoor (Nos ) () Yoar Year As 3t Asat
Wegnled avevage nursbes off 2085020100 | 20 68 86 YaT e cseare — Shaned
Fi o Sy el e - R
Qarng e year (Nes ) (C) tion 1o 0 0
":mn vitlew of Equity Shares w0 10} Aey Pessonnel

s.)
%hwwm(m; 028 020 b) abowe

}
Diuted Eamings per share (Rs ) 018 0.20] HPRCL
(A}
Share Application Nl 66.60
Money
17. Related Party Disclosures (AS-18) :
a) Joint Ventures  : Kutch Railway Company Limited mm:,m bt 6] 1038 un




ﬁ Rail Vikas Nigam Limited Annual Report 2009-2010
o, 4. | Bnaruch Dahe | Rall Vikas Nigam | 284118 50
Raitway Limited, India %
Share  Application 588 19.09 Company Adanl Pedronet 11.7647 | 50%
Money Liervtext (Dahey) Port %
{BDRCL) Privale Limiled,
:::»a Near 11.7647
towards ime b -
— project 100.2¢ 06|  wm 47.96 Lint =
S 117647 =
Limited, India %
o p— . n Gujaral Narmada | 117647 -
Valay Fortilizers %
Carporation
Dpenditure Limited. India
Fowants project £536 | um AX Fndaco 67| -
Kutch  Ralway Indusiries Limited, %
Cormpuery . India
. ! Indal Ral 11.7647
" Infrastruciure %
- tmted e | |
5 Angul Sukinda | Rall Vikas Nigam 580% 50%
- Ratwary Limited | Limited, Incia
Sty Apglicition 230 - {ASRL) Jncal Steel and | B0% | 50%
o Powar Limited,
Indla
Expenditum e
towands project 1850 R 6% Detalis of the aggregate amounts of the assets, labilities,
= income and expenditure refated to the interest in the jointly
* See note No. 11 controlled entities are as under:

** These represent amount recoverable on account of & Kutch Railway Company Limited
penditure incurred on various projects of Joint Ventu
” : o ia As at March 31, | As at March
18. Disclosure in respect of Joint Venture: 2010 (Provisional) 31, 2009
e e— s - = in crove) in crore)
[ B Name of the | Partner(s) Proporti| Proporti s o
No | Joint Venture | Country of onof | onaf Asseds excluding 280.31 261.45
Origin Owners | Owners prefiminary expanditure
_hip | hip Labities 180.46 161.
st Income 146,81 101,
as as at = 1 E Y B
March | March Expendiure 101.27 78.02
31, 2010] 31, 2009
T [ Ruich Raiiway | Fial Vikas Nigam w1 town | Contingent liabilities: Rs. NIl {Previous year Rs. Nil)
Company Limited, India Capital commitment: Rs. Nil, {Previous year Rs. Nil)
oy Kanda Pord Tl | 28% | 26% | b Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited
India
Gusral ~ Adani T %] As at March As at March
Groug, India 31,2010 31, 2009
Feon o i i (Provisional) | (Rs. in crore)
edia 5 (Rs. In crore)
2. " Rail Vilkes Nigam 60% 0% Assels excludirg 137.85 139.59
Paradip Railway | Limited, india prefmnary expanditure
Company Essel Mining and 80% 50% Liabilties 0.38 208
Limited Industrss Lid.,
((HPRCL) Indfia Income 292 467
EN Rail Wmth:am % | 5% Expenditure 0.11 0.89
Lm' (:(RCL) Pert Cmm % Contingent liabilities: Rs. Nil {Previous year Rs. Nil)
Limited, india Capital commitment: Rs, Nil, (Previous year Rs. Nil)

| e |
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¢ Krishnapatnam Rallway Company Limited

As at March As at March
31, 2010 31, 2009
(Provisional) (Rs. In
(Rs. in crore) crore)
Assets excluding 113.05 68.71
axpenditure =
Liabiities 25.54 0.75
|_Income 0.33 0.24
Expenditure 0.04 0.73 |

Contingent liabilities: Rs, Nil (Previous year Rs, Nil}
Capital commitment: Rs. Nil, (Previous year Rs, Nil)

d.  Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited

As at March 31, | Asat March
2010 31, 2009
(Rs. in crore) (Rs. in crore)

Assets excluding

prelminary

expenditure 47.24 299

Liabilities 22.25 0,19

Income 021 0.21
| Expenditure 0.18 033

Contingent liabilities: Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs, Nil)
Capital commitment: Rs. Nil, {Previous year Rs, Nil)

.  Angul Sukinda Railway Limited

As at March As at March
31, 2010 31, 2009

(Provisional) | (Rs. in crore)
{Rs. In crore)

Assets excluding 1825

| prefiminary expenditure
Liabiities 10.23 0.03
Income 0.03 -
0.03 0,03

Contingent Habilities: Rs. NIl (Previous year Rs. Nif)
Capital commitment: Rs. Nil, (Previous year Rs. Nil)

ﬁm Vikas Nigam Limited

19. Business Segment

As the Company business activity falls within a single
sepment viz. construction of Railway projects being in
the domestic market, the disclosure requirement of AS-
17 on *Segment Reporting” Issued by the Institute of
Charterad Accountants of India (ICAl) is not appicable,

20. Lease Rentals

The company’s leasing arrangements in respect of
offices and residential premises are n the nature of
operating lease. The aggregate lease rental payable is
being allocated to project work in progress and
administrative expenses in the Profit & Loss Account,
The rent is being charged on rates agreed to between
HUDCO and RVNL based on letter of offer received from
HUDCO and agreed to by RVNL. The formal lease
agreement between the Company and HUDCO for lease
of Corporata Office, New Dethi has not been executed and
Is under approval of Ministry of Urban Development.

21. Previous year figures have been restated / regrouped /
redassified wherever considered necessary to conform
to the current year's classification.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

$. C. Agnihotri Harish Chandra Suman Kalra
Managing Director Director Finance Company Secretary

For Bhushan Bensal Jain Assoclates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 003884N
Sd/-

{CA Ravi Bhardwaj)

Partner
Membership No. 80656

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29.06.2010
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Balance Sheet Abstract and a Company's General Business Profile

Schedule VI Part IV
Companies Act, 1956

Registration Details
Registration No.
Balance Sheet Date

55-118633
31.03.2010

State code

Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Rights Issue

Private Placement

Assets

Reserves & Surplus
Unsecured Loans

Investments
Misc, Expenditure

Public Issue NIL
Bonus Issue NIL
Position of Mobllisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Liabilities 81724772
Sources of Funds

Paid-up Capital 2,08,50,201
Secured Loans NIL
Deferred Tax Liability NIL
Application of Funds

Net Fixed Assets 27175
Net Current Assets 7,08,06,798
Accumulated Losses NIL

Performance of company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Turnover 1,77,12,094
Profit/(Loss) Before tax 6,74,884
Earning per Share in Rs. 025

Deferred Tax Asset

Expenditure

Profit/(Loss) After tax
Dividend rate %

Generic Names of Three Principal Products/ Services of Company

(as per monetary terms)

Item Code No. (ITC Code)
Product Description

Item Code No. (ITC Code)
Product Description

Item Code No. (ITC Code)
Product Description

Bhushan Bensal Jain Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:003884N

CA Ravi Bhardwaj
Partner
M.No. 80656

Place : New Delhi
Date : 29th June 2010

Sd{-
S.C.Agnihotri
Managing Director

93.09
Turnkey construction

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

8,17,24.772

10,67,623
5,22,60,606

33,332,750
NIL

1,70,37,210
5,19,067
048

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Mmmn
Director Finance

Suman Kalra
Company Secretary
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Bhushan Bensal Jain Associates

ﬁ'&u‘l Vikas Nigam Limited

4648721, Daryagan), New Delhi-110002
Ph: 23261054, Fax; 23252876
E-mall : bjassociates_rb@yahoo.co.in

Auditors' Report
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RAIL VIKAS NIGAM LIMITED

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of
RAIL VIKAS NIGAM LIMITED, as at 31st March,
2010 and the Profit and Loss Account and the
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that
date, annexed thereto. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management, Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in India.
Those Standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by the
management as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion,

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2003 issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (4A) of Section 227
of the Companies Act, 1956 we annex hereto a
statement on the matters specified in Paragraph
4 and 5 of the said Order.

Further to our comments in the Annexure
referred to in paragraph 3 here above, we report
that:-

(1) We have obtained all the information and
explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

IE]—E

(i) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as
required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our
examination of those books;

(lii} The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss
Account & Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the
books of account;

(iv) In our opinion, the Balance sheet, the Profit
and Loss Account & the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this report comply with the
accounting standards referred to in sub-
section (3C) of Section 211 of the Companies
Act, 1956 to the extent applicable to the
Company;

{v) The Company is a Government Company and
the Directors have been appointed by the
Central Government, Hence clause (g) of sub-
section {1) of Section 274 of the Companies
Act, 1956 is not applicable and hence no
comments.

(vi)Attention Is invited to our following
comments:-

(a) Note No. 1(ii) regarding the expenditure
incurred by Zonal Railways prior to the
formation of the Company has not been
brought to the books of the Company.

(b) Work in Progress shown under the
Current Assets includes projects
completed/ partly completed under
operation by Railways. However,
financial adjustments are yet to be
carried out in absence of modalities to
be finalized in consultation with Ministry
of Railways and the consequent financial
impact thereof cannot be ascertained
presently.
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*  Subject to our comments in paragraph 4 (vi) (a),
non inclusion of expenditure incurred by Zonal
Railways prior to formation of the Company and
para 4 (vi) (b) financial adjustments yet to be
carried out in absence of modalities to be
finalized in consultation with Ministry of
Railways and the consequent financial impact
thereof cannot be ascertained presently, in our
opinion and to the best of our information &
according to the explanations given to us, the
said accounts read with the notes to accounts
in Schedule 18 give the information required by
the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India:

1} in the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2010;

b) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of
the Profit for the year ended on that date;
and

c) in the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the
cash flows for the year ended on that date,

For Bhushan Bensal Jain Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN:003884N

Sd/-

( CA Ravi Bhardwaj )

Partner

Membership No. 80656

Place: New Delhi
Date : 29.06.2010
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i

i)

iv)

v)

vi)

ﬁm Vikas Nigam Limited

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date
to the Shareholders of Rail Vikas Nigam Ltd. on the
accounts for the year 31st March, 2010

a) The Company is maintaining proper records
showing full particulars  including
quantitative details and situation of its
fixed assets.

b) The Company has a phased programme for
physical verification of fixed assets and no
material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

¢) During the year, the company has not
disposed off any substantial part of Its
fixed assets, therefore, it does not affect
the going concern assumption.

According to information and explanation given
to us the inventories have been physically
verified during the year. No material
discrepancies have been noticed.

The Company has neither granted nor taken
any loans, secured or unsecured, to/from
companies, firms or other parties covered in
the register maintained under Section 301 of
the Act. Hence no further comments are
required under clauses (a) to (g) of para 4 (i)
of CARO, 2003.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, there |s
adequate internal control procedure
commensurate with the size of the Company
and nature of its business, for purchase of
Inventory and fixed assets and for providing of
services. Further, on the basis of our
examination and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have not
observed any continuing failure or major
weaknesses which need to be corrected in
internal control systems.

Based on our examination and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we
are of the opinion that there were no
transactions during the year that need to be
entered in the Register maintained under
Section 301 of the Companies Act 1956.

Based on our scrutiny of the company's record
& according to the explanations given to us by

vil)

viii)

ix)

x)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

the management the Company has not
accepted any deposits from public during the
year,

The internal audit of the Company is being
carried out by a firm of Chartered Accountants,
The scope given is commensurate with the size
and nature of company's business.

As informed to us the Central Government has
not prescribed maintenance of cost records
under section 209 (1) (d) of the Companies Act,
1956,

a) As informed to us, and based on our
examination of records and explanations
given to us, the Company has been regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues
Iincluding Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Wealth Tax, Custom Duty and Excise
Duty whichever is applicable with the
appropriate authorities and there were no
arrears outstanding of statutory dues as at
the last day of financial year for a period
of more than six months from the date
they became payable,

b) According to the information made
available to us, there is no disputed dues
in respect of Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Excise
Duty, Custom Duty, Service Tax, Sales Tax
and Cess which have not been deposited.

The Company does not have any accumulated
losses. The Company has not incurred cash
losses during the financial year ended 31st
March, 2010 and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

The Company has not borrowed from any
financial institutions, bank or issued any
Debentures, therefore, no comment Is
required to be given under para 4 (xi) of CARO,
2003,

The Company has not granted loan and
advances on the basis of security by way of
pledge of shares, debentures and other
securities.

The Company is not a chit fund company, nidhi/
mutual benefit fund/societies, therefore, no
comment is required to be given under para 4
(xiii) of CARO, 2003.

| e— |
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xiv)

xv)

xvi)

xvil)

xviii)
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The Company s not dealing or trading in any
shares, securities, debentures and other
Investments. Accordingly the provisions of
clause 4 (xiv) of CARO,2003 is not applicable to
the company.

The Company has not given any guarantee for
loans taken by others from banks or financial
institutions,

In our opinion and according to information
and explanations given to us, the term loans
taken from IRFC have been applied for the
purpose for which the loans were obtained,

On the basis of information and explanations
glven to us, and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the company, no
funds have been raised on short-term basis.
Hence, no comments required,

According to the information and explanation
given to us, during the period covered by our
audit report, the company has not made
preferential allotment of shares to parties and
companies covered in the register maintained

xix)

xx)

xxi)

under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956,

The Company has not issued any debentures,
therefore, no comment is required to be given
under para 4 (xix) of CARO, 2003.

The Company has not raised any money by
public issue, therefore, no comment is required
to be given under para 4 (xx) of CARO, 2003,

According to the information and explanations
given 1o us by the management, no fraud on
the company or by the Company has been
noticed during the year.

For Bhushan Bensal Jain Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN:003884N

Sd/-

{ CA Ravi Bhardwaj )

Partner

Membership No. 80656

: New Delhi
: 29.06.2010
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Comments of the Comptroller And auditor General of India under section 619(4)
of the Companies Act, 1956 on the Accounts of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, New
Delhi for the year ended 31 March 2010

The preparation of financial statement of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, New Delhi, for the year ended 31 March
2010 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956, is the
responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under Section 619(2) of the Companies Act, 1956, are responsible for expressing
opinion on these financial statement under Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, based on independent
audit in accordance with the auditing and assurance standards prescribed by their professional body, the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report
dated 29 June 2010,

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit under Section 619(3)
(b) of the Companies Act, 1956, of the financial statements of Rall Vikas Nigam Limited, New Delhi, for the year ended
31 March 2010, This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of
the statutory auditors and is limited primariy to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records. On the basls of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge
which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory Auditor’s report under Section 619(4) of the
Companies Act, 1956

For and on the hehall of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

sd/-
(M.K. Biswas)

Place: New Delhi Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Dated: 20 August 2010 Ex-officio Member Audit Board - I,
New Delhi




